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Five Year Financial Summary

EFFEHBKEHME

Consolidated Income Statement

mEWER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
—TE= —EENF ZTTRF ZETRX —EZLHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000
FTARYE FTITARE FrARE FTTARE FTrAR%
(As restated) (As restated)
(E31)) (&51)
Continuing operations:  IFEKEET :
Turnover L 654,273 941,577 1,048,532 944,622 1,253,230
Profit before taxation FRA AT A 40,830 60,160 4,921 16,072 8,383
Taxation g (2,833) (5,019) (878) (2,426) (3,106)
Profit from continuing FELCEET
operations il 37,997 55,141 4,043 13,646 5,277
Discontinuing operations: B4 1L %% :
Profit/(Loss) from BRIEEB 2
discontinued operations wmFL (E51R) - - (1,770) (2,203) 11,634
Profit for the year F 1A ) 37,997 55,141 2,275 11,443 16,911
Attributable to: FEfL
Equity holders AR EIRRAE
of the Company FEA 29,444 41,229 308 12,042 13,802
Minority interests DER R R 8,553 13,912 1,965 (599) 3,109
37,997 55,141 2,275 11,443 16,911
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Five Year Financial Summary

IFHHEHRE

Consolidated Balance Sheet REBEEBEBR
At 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
—ET= —ETNFE —ZEFETRF ZEFETX —EELEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FTARE FTARE FIARE FrARE
Non-current assets IEMENEE 77,446 88,045 217,475 221,900 317,668
Current assets MEVEE 302,632 453,854 655,948 690,068 695,539
Current liabilities mEEE (198,157) (260,998) (543,844) (521,344) (640,248)
Non-current liabilities EREEE - - (48,486) (28,832) -
181,921 280,901 281,093 361,792 372,959
Issued capital BRI - 42,480 42,480 50,480 59,460
Reserves 1 141,211 174,666 168,744 203,866 245,143
Proposed final dividend Fb R AR BAAR B - 12,000 4,000 9,600 11,520
Minority interests LYIR R 40,710 51,755 65,869 97,846 56,836
181,921 280,901 281,093 361,792 372,959
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Chairman’s Statement

ETR®BE

Dear fellow shareholders, BRRE -

| am pleased to announce the audited results of Mayer Holdings AAMMAREHEDSERER AR ([FEE]

Limited (“Mayer” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively S [AAT]) REMKBAR (KifEAREH])

referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2007 (the HE—_ZZ+F+-_A=+—B1IEFE (X

“Year"). FEZEEZER -

Highlights for the year ended 31 December 2007: HE_ZTTEF+_A=1+—RHLEFEZ
FERHBE:

e Group Revenues were RMB1,253,230,000 o AREMEZUERET,253,230,000t AR

H

e Profit from operation was RMB27,616,000 o EEEFIE27,616,0007T A REE

e Profit attributable to shareholders was RMB13,802,000 o MRERFE(L R F3E3,802,0007T AR

e Earnings per share was RMB2.69 cents e BRAEMNR269H5 AR

e Final dividend per share was RMB2 cents o KRERERER2D AR

Review of Results XEDE

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group reported AREBRHE_ZEELtF+_A=+—
consolidated turnover of RMB1,253,230,000, representing a increase AIEFRE2irA & ¥%#1,253,230,000
of 32.7% over last year. Gross profit margin was 4.5% compared TARE WEFEEIT% EFER A
to last year's 6.5%. Net profit attributable to shareholders was  4.5% ' iff A R 56.5% o % 5 FE(L 405 5
RMB13,802,000, compared with last year's RMB12,042,000. Earnings 13,802,0007C A R# + £ £12,042,0007T
per share for the Year from continuing operations and discontinued ARB AFEFHELEEBROKRIEE
operations were RMBO0.83 cents and RMB1.86 cents versus the last %2 GRAET DR R0.830 AR X1.86
year's RMB2.61 cents and RMB0.38 cents, respectively. APARE  XFAHRAE2601DARER
0383 AR -

Dividend BE

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of RMB2 EFEZEN _TTEFIREKRAR ST
cents per share in respect of 2007 (2006: RMB2 cents per share). 2OARE (ZZEZEXRF 829 AREK) -
Business Review e e

The national economy of the PRC is basically achieving a balance after PEER BB ERE R AL PREBERL
the PRC government implemented those macro control measures. The BEEARNEB FHYEHERNSE - MME
increase in market demand and overall prices of steel products has mZ MG EREEEERE _ETHFMW
been moderately raised in 2007. On the other hand, raw materials, Frem—FHE  RMEEE - BBRKA -
energy costs, labour costs and interest rates have all been increased to BTHRARAREHSHZHDOFHIE -
different extents.

While the PRC macro regulation and control measures continually REEEWE ZEFAEERARETSE
toughened and aimed to kept steady market growth, the Mainland is FEEZE  RMNARTmERBEDY
still represent a huge market with plentiful opportunities. We also seek BEA™ME - REBIWIREEK - BB -
opportunities on a globally prospective. Accordingly, a steel product A EERN ST+ FEEE—
manufacturing plant has been constructed in late 2007 and is ready to EnRE EBABEmERYANFER -
address the keen market needs in Vietnam.
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Chairman’s Statement

The Group’s steel business segment has recorded a segment profit
of RMB26,527,000 for the Year. During the Year, the Group sold
approximately 155,000 tonnes of steel products, representing 13.1%
increased from approximately 137,000 tonnes for the last year. The
average selling price of the Group’s steel products during the Year
increased by approximately 5.4% compared with that the last year.

The Group’s Aluminum segment has recorded a segment profit of
RMB4,244,000 for the first half of Year 2007. On May 2007, the
Group decided to dispose the Fullchamp Aluminum segment for a
total cash consideration of NT$149,500,000 (equivalent to RMB34.7
million) to a connected party due to the fact that the segment has still
been loss making for the previous years. The disposal of Fullchamp
was completed in July 2007 and resulted in a disposal gain of
approximately RMB8,715,000.

The Group then applied partial proceeds received from the Disposal
of Fullchamp to acquire an additional two aircrafts for rental purpose
which aimed for a steady rental income to the Group.

In the second half of 2007, the Group has formed a new
property investment business segment by acquiring an industrial
and commercial building in Taiwan for a total consideration of
NT$880,000,000 (equivalent to RMB197 million). The property
investment business segment has not yet contributed any segment
revenue for the Year. However, the Group believed that this major
acquisition is in line with the Group’s current business diversification
strategy to invest in favorable investments and to broaden the income
base of the Group.

Outlook

Looking ahead in 2008, the imbalance between demand and supply
in the steel and metal sector will continue and the prices of steel and
metal products will still remain at a moderately fast level. With the
PRC’s and Vietnam’s economy maintain a rapid growth rate, still there
will be a strong domestic demand for our products.

ERBE

RNEEZ M EBD BRAFESSH I
Vi 726,527,000 A R#E « RAFE + K
S E 2 M E G S 2 3E 49155,00018 - 81Xk
 [A AR 49137,000M8 18 & 4913.1% A AR 4F
B -AEBEMERZ FHEERAFA
Lt EFH#95.4% o

NEBZEMEBER -_TTLF ¥ FH
BoEmA4, 244,000t ARKE - —FZT+
FRHA - RNEBERE LA $£149,500,0007T
&1 (& 134,700,000t AR 2 48
HeERELEFTREMO BT —BEEA
T AAEDSBAT —EHEBEE - FK
PEEHER-_TTLFLATK ' LE
A4 E U5 498,715,000 A R -

Hig AEESHEEK 280 MERA
ARAEZMABRREUERER R - K
RAEBERERE ZHSWAKR -

ZZTLEFTEF AEEUAH
880,000,0007T #7 & # (48 & $2197,000,000
TARB) ZEREBERE—EUREEH
ITE¥RT BRI MERE X
DEb MEREEBHBRAFE M RE
RAEMR DS s - AT - AEERELE
BEMREFTEAEEERM 2 EKZ Tk
REE - B EREHENBE LHEARNEE
Z U A EEHE o

RS2

RE_ZTNF W LeBRAIZHE
KEBERBERE MMM EeBERZ
EBRINGESES BETEEBMELE
RESEER SEHERSEEBERYT
BEBEANRIRE -

4

L7
)

-1

i

%
k'
&

F #2007 ERege il A 7



Chairman’s Statement

ETR®BE

Along with the global economy is likely to be affected by the fallout GBS PRI EBRANIEEBERET
from the U.S. subprime predicament and the weaken U.S. dollar HEMEERSMHEZR  SEBHEEK
against other currencies. We expect that the rise in operating costs, REHE EREFETANBERDERE
oil prices and interest rate drops will continue, and the increasingly TEHRFEBEINEHAER 2 EET
intense market competition will present more challenges to the RE ZPRER o

Group's operation.

As the general expectation, Taiwan’s economic growth will surge in —INERBE  BEE A B PUR B E
the next few years following its governmental and economic reforms, FBEMASEERBERRKEF £
plentiful opportunities will appear. The Group is determined to Wis KL - REBHAHILIES E1E
capitalize these opportunities arising from the growth of the Taiwan, EURFRBREEMBRNIERMITENR
together with the growth in the PRC and other countries. The Group Mo REBBEETHERIERERS I
will continue to seek new investment opportunities in stakes in BETIER L&D -

potential growth and balanced return.

The Group’s management is confident that the Group will fully AEBZEEEBHREAERBEZRHERK
capitalize its extensive experience in cost management and achieve RER 7 LEREE  EWE S 2 AARE
greater cost effectiveness, strengthen high value-added products’ EINEEEERZEEREEREMEE -
innovation and achieve customer satisfaction excellence. The Group is AEEEILETIMNENNRNEERREZRE
welcome to every investment opportunities which are beneficial to our Wil ARNEBRIREEAERZERLDR -
long term development, with an aim to generate the best return from

investments and generate the best returns to our investors.

Appreciation H

The Company would like to express its sincere gratitude to the RAFIBE R - ERIRTT « ERINFE -
shareholders, banks, business partners, and people from various social HeSRAURAER2EET 2 REILF
communities, as well as all staff of the Group for their long-time BLA OB T o

support.

By Order of the Board EEEEH

Lai Yueh-hsing *E

Chairman HEE

Hong Kong, 18 April 2008 B —_EENFIA+TNAB
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Review of Results

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group reported
consolidated turnover of RMB1,253,230,000, representing an increase
of 32.7% over last year. Gross profit margin was 4.5% compared
to last year’s 6.5%. Net profit attributable to shareholders was
RMB13,802,000, compared with last year's RMB12,042,000. Earnings
per share from continuing operations and discontinued operations
for the Year were RMB0.83 and RMB1.86 cents versus the last year's
RMB2.61 cents and RMBO0.38 cents, respectively.

Major Business Activities

Disposal of Fullchamp

On 13 April 2007, Sunbeam, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into the Share Disposal Agreement
with Taiwan Mayer, the ultimate holding company, to dispose
all its remaining 28.51% equity interest in Fullchamp for a
consideration of NT$149,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB34.7 million) in cash. The disposal of Fullchamp is completed
in July 2007 and resulted in a disposal gain of approximately
RMBS8,715,000.

Acquisition of property

On 11 June 2007, the Company entered into an agreement with
an independent third party, to acquire the Property at a total
consideration of NT$880,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB197 million). The property, an industrial building, is situated
at Land No.14, Kuang Fu Sec., Hsinchu City, Taiwan with a
site of approximately 3,664.54 square metres. The acquisition
of Property was completed and full payment was made on 5
February 2008.

Issue of 96,000,000 New Subscription Shares

On 13 August 2007, the Company entered into seven
Subscription Agreements with seven Subscribers (the
“Subscribers”), independent third parties, whereby the Company
agreed to issue 96,000,000 new Subscription Shares at a price of
HK$0.60 per Subscription Share. The Subscription Shares were
issued under the existing issue mandate to issue shares granted
to the Directors at the Company’s AGM held on 31 May 2007.

EERENWEDN

v
»
‘4 &
L1
Ve
g o) .

AEBRBE-_ZETE+F+=_A=+—
HIEFE 2E6 % %¥8&1,253,230,000
TARE BREFHREIT% - EFERAE
45%  MEFHE6.5%  REREGAFA
13,802,0007C A R # - K5 /512,042,0007T
ARB ARFEEFBELEXEBREKRIEHE
%2 BRAEF D R A0.830 AR X1.86
DARE KFRIRE2610 ARE R
038 AR -

FEEKEE

e HEER
“EERLEMNATZAARALZ
2 A M B AR R & KRIER QA
AEBETIIVURNDEEHE  UERE
R {E149,500,0007T %1 & #& (8 & R &Y
34,700,000t AR M) BHEEER S
P 328.51% 2 sr Nk AN HgEz o HEE
M—EER_ZEZTLFLATEK I
A H & 25 498,715,000 AR -

o INIEYIE

ZEZEFARAT B ARAEE
S =55 M % 0 )A880,000,0007T
& (FHE $2197,000,0007T A R )
ZHEREWE-EME ZBUESR
NREBEEHMMAERI4MSE T
EBF 0 (5H43,664.54F 5K o IR
BZUE—FZELTKIER=_ZZ
NE_ARABXHE2EGE -

e  3%1796,000,000 % & 2 B8 Bk 19

—EEEFNAT=RA " ARAEL
2RBAURBAl BRERBILF
=RRINEDRERZ - B AR
AR B A B IR X 100.60/8 7T Z (B
1% %% 1796,000,0000% #7 32 f iz 17 © 32
BRODRE-_ZFTLFAA=1T—
RETZARARRBEFAGLRET
EEAMBTRODIRITRITREN
ESl
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EERERWREDN

The net proceeds from the Subscription amounted to
approximately HK$57.3 million out of which approximately
HK$23 million will be used as partial payment of the
consideration for the Acquisition of Property as mentioned above
and the remaining balance of HK$34.3 million will be used as

additional working capital of the Group.

All 96,000,000 new Subscription Shares were issued and allotted
to the Subscribers on 27 August 2007. These shares rank pari
passu with the existing shares of the Company in all respects.

Production and Sales

The revenue from indirect export sales of steel products in the PRC
during the Year was approximately RMB878,175,000, representing
an increase of approximately 7.6% compared with approximately
RMB815,917,000 for the last year. The market for indirect export
sales in the PRC continued to be the core market for the Group’s steel

segment.

The revenue from domestic sales of steel products in the PRC and
Vietnam during the Year was approximately RMB304,827,000,
representing an increase of approximately 215.8% compared with
approximately RMB96,532,000 for the last year.

The revenue from direct export sales of steel products outside the PRC
during the Year was approximately RMB17,976,000, representing
a decrease of approximately 25.2% while it was approximately

RMB24,050,000 for the last year.

The revenue from export sales of aluminum products during the Year
was approximately RMB61,478,000, the aluminum business segment

was discontinued from July 2007.

Rental income from aircrafts leasing during the Year was approximately
RMB7,664,000 compared with approximately RMB5,110,000 for the
last year and which represented a stable stream of income for the

Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

No income was recognized from property investment during the Year
as all the pre-conditions required under the Acquisition of Property
were fulfilled on February 2008.

Gross Profit

The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately RMB55,807,000
for the Year, with a gross profit margin of approximately 4.5%,
compared with the gross profit of approximately RMB61,550,000 and
a gross profit margin of approximately 6.5% for the last year.

This was mainly attributable to the growth rate of the purchasing costs
of raw materials is higher than of the selling prices of our products.

Operating Expenses

The total operating expenses of the Group for the Year were
approximately RMB51,276,000, of which approximately
RMB13,681,000 in selling and distribution costs, RMB34,696,000
in administrative expenses and RMB2,899,000 in other operating
expenses, accounting for approximately 1.1%, 2.8%, and 0.2%
of turnover respectively while the amounts for the last year were
approximately RMB 12,828,000, RMB27,540,000, and RMB2,030,000
respectively, accounting for approximately 1.4%, 2.9%, and 0.2%
respectively.

Finance Costs

During the Year, the Group incurred RMB 19,233,000 in finance costs,
compared with approximately RMB15,967,000 for the last year. The
Group relied on bank borrowings to finance its trading activities, the
increase in finance costs paid during the Year was mainly due to the
increase in interest rates in the PRC.

Financial Resources and Treasury Policies

The Group continues to adhere to prudent treasury policies. The Group
continued to insure against major receivables in order to lower the
risks of credit sales and to ensure that funds would be recovered on a
timely basis, hence fulfilling the requirements for debt repayments and
working capital commitments.

EERENWEDN

AFEERTEERVERERA  BAEIK
BZMECHMBRERAERER S NG
ZAEK -

ER
REBENARFE 15 EF 455,807,000
TTARE  ERERH45%  =FEEF AL
#361,550,0007C A R#E - EF| % 496.5% ©

ERHEERRARERMEIRBRAN TR
= B (B HO RIS o

EEER
REBAFEZ2EXBRLENR
51,276,000t ARE - AR iHE ko H
RXAN#)13,681,000C ARE - 1THBIS B
34,696,000t AR - Hfb i &M X &
2,899,000 A RHE - (& E R 2 th B 5 7
BB 1.1%28%K02% - EF LD
B4 £12,828,0007t A R ¥ + 27,540,000
AR 12,030,000t A RYE - tEE S RIA
B 1.4% 2.9%K%02% °

Rl & B 2R

19,233,000t AR - XFRBHAO A
15,967,000t A R#E c REBEF|HRITE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEREBNWED N

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had bank deposits and cash RZBEELFE+A=Z+—H KA&E
balances (including pledged bank deposits) of approximately ZRTFRER &R (BRE2EFR?T
RMB113,998,000, of which bank deposits of approximately F ) 49 /4113,998,000T A R # - Heh gy
RMB46,537,000 were pledged to secure financing facilities granted to 46,537,000t AR B 2 FRE BEREE
the Group. EERmEFENERS -

The Group had net current assets of approximately RMB55,291,000 AREBR - ZBEZEL+HF+-_A=+—HZR
as at 31 December 2007 as compared with RMB168,724,000 as at 31 & EFEL AE55,291,000t ARE - M
December 2006. The current ratio (current assets divided by current —EERF+ZA=1+—HA168,724,000
liabilities) changed to approximately 1.09 as of 31 December 2007 TARE RZZEZLF+-_A=+—H
from 1.32 as at 31 December 2006. The drop in the current ratio R E (RBEERUARHEE) L
was mainly due to the payable amount regarding the acquisition of a #2109 M_TEERFEF+_A=T—A8%
property in Taiwan at the balance sheet date. 132 RBEETHR  FZEREAANEH
BE—F@ENKEEEYE 2 EAFIE -

The Group had a total of approximately RMB675,481,000 financing R-ZZEZLFE+_A=+—H AEEE
facilities from banks were available as at 31 December 2007, of which RITHRM 2 Al AR & 5 § #49675,481,000
approximately RMB311,402,000, mainly denominated in Renminbi, TARE FTEUARE -ZT - BTk
US dollars, HK dollars and new Taiwan dollars with floating interest FeBABMYRFEFNERITE 4B
rates, had been drawn down to finance the Group's working capital FEEN49311,402,0007T A R ¥ LA A AR £ (3]
purposes, capital expenditures and for other acquisition opportunities. JREEBERES BAAILREMWERE -

The gearing ratio (net debt divided by total capital) as at 31 R-ET+F+_A=+—HZEXKEE
December 2007 was approximately 38.4% while it was 53.1% as K OFEBHRUABER) H9/838.4% MR
of 31 December 2006. Current portion of borrowings accounted for —EEXRFT+_A=Z=+—HZBEAEBEXR
approximately 30.7% and 37.9% of the total assets of the Group Al A53.1% - 6 B 2 BIER S 2 BI(h AN &
as at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006, respectively. The ER—TEELF+T_A=T—HBRZZEZE
Group’s liquidity has been further improved by a HK$57.3 million fund ANETZA=ZT—HZHBEELN307% K
raising exercise at the end of 2007 and the disposal of Fullchamp. 37.9% - AEBZRABEERAEE T
T+ FF K 5TK 257,300,000 TEEE
B) 2 & =K M — 2P o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cash Flow

For the Year, the Group generated net cash outflow of RMB4,177,000
from its operating activities, as compared to net cash outflow of
approximately RMB19,273,000 for the last year. The increase in
net cash outflow from operating activities was primarily due to the
increase in the inventories and trade receivables during the Year.

Net cash outflow of approximately RMB52,830,000 was from
investing activities for the Year, mainly resulted from the Group’s
capital expenditures and the acquisition of property in Taiwan. Net
cash inflow of approximately RMB74,336,000 was from financing
activities, mainly resulted from the Group’s issue of new shares and
the disposal of Fullchamp during the Year.

Banks deposits and cash balances (including pledged bank deposits of
approximately RMB46,537,000) as at 31 December 2007 amounted
to approximately RMB 113,998,000, mainly denominated in Renminbi,
US dollars, HK dollars and new Taiwan dollars.

Foreign Exchange Exposures

As most of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are denominated
in Renminbi, US dollars, HK dollars and new Taiwan dollars and those
currencies remained relatively stable during the Year, the Group
was not exposed to any significant exchange risk (see note 3 to the
financial statements). In general, it is the Group’s policy for each
operating entity to borrow in local currencies, where necessary, to
minimize currency risk.

Charge on Group Assets

As at 31 December 2007, building, plant and equipment and interest
in leasehold land held for own use under an operating lease of the
Group with net book value of approximately RMB66,980,000 and
RMB8,416,000 respectively and bank deposits of approximately
RMB46,537,000 were pledged to banks for securing banking
and other financing facilities granted to the Group. These
financing facilities had been utilised to the extent of approximately
RMB 140,383,000 at the balance sheet.
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R4 419,273,000 A R o g & %
BREzFRSEMEIEZERAAELEER

RAFE RESZHZ2FHRERLEOR
52,830,000t AR - T EEHAEEZ
BARZRKBREMEMRES BER
&) 2 HIRE IR AL A74,336,0000T AREE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEREBNWED N

Contingent Liabilities XREE

1 At 31 December 2007, the Company has given corporate R-EZELF+_A=+—8 A2am
guarantees in favour of certain banks to secure banking facilities of WEBAREMETEREBITEEMHS T
RMB80,241,000 (2006: RMB47,016,000) granted to Guangzhou SR 1TIR ML A R HE (R £980,241,0007T A R #&
Mayer, a subsidiary. Out of these banking facilities, RMB60,736,000 (ZZZTXF 1 47,016,000t AR © 5%
was utilised by Guangzhou Mayer as at 31 December 2007 (2006: EHRITEET  BENESHE_ZTETLF

RMB44,961,000). TZA=+—HE2 M HH 460,736,000
TARB(ZZTZTNF 1 44,961,000 A R
) o

Apart from the above, the Company and the Group have no other M EatEN  RARIRAEERNWMELE

material contingent liabilities at both balance sheet dates. AYmAEMBERIAERE-

Employment, Training and Development EH -EZIREE

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had total of 350 employees. Total R-ZEE+F+_A=+—8 £K&E

staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2007 were approximately HBEBOEEE NEBEE_ZEZTLF+=

RMB18,256,000, including retirement benefits cost of approximately A=+ BLEFEZREINALN A

RMB1,739,000. Remuneration packages of the Group are maintained 18,256,000t AR - B3R IREFI A

at a competitive level to attract, retain and motive employees and are 491,739,000 AR - NEE 2 F B F8

reviewed on a periodic basis. WIRTEAEBF N2 KENURS %8R
EES - g BAEL RS o

The Group always maintains good relation with its employees and is AEE—PEESHFRIER  IE H
committed to employee training and development on a regular basis AEBRMEIINERE  HIFEREE -
to maintain the quality of our products.

In addition, the Company has a share option scheme for the purpose O RARZR B BRERS - mE BB

of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants. No option 2 E R SE X IERE - BN -
has been granted under the scheme since its adoption. AR B ZET 2R R IR A -
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Biographical Details of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Yueh-hsing, aged 50, is an executive director and the
chairman of the Company. Mr. Lai is responsible for the overall
corporate strategy and planning of the Group. He holds a Bachelor
degree in Corporate Management from Tamkang University. He is
currently a director of Kuo Hua Life Insurance Company Limited, a
director of Durban Development Co., Limited, a director of Tze Shin
International Company Limited and the Director of Du Centre Co.,
Limited.

Mr. Lo Haw, aged 45, is an executive director of the Company
responsible for the product development of the Group. He holds a
Master of Business Administration degree in 1992 from Bloomsbury
University of Pennsylvania. Mr. Lo has over 16 years of experience
in the steel pipe and sheet industry. Prior to his appointment as
director of Guangzhou Mayer Corp., Limited (“Guangzhou Mayer”)
on 23 November 1995, Mr. Lo had worked as vice-chairman of
Yungfa Steel Corp., Limited. He is currently a director of a number of
companies, namely, Taiwan Mayer and Fukang Investments Holdings
Company Limited. Mr. Lo was awarded by the Guangzhou Municipal
Government as “Honorary Citizen”.

Dr. Lin Meng-chang, aged 38, graduated with a Ph.D. degree in
corporate management from the Shanghai University of Finance &
Economics in 2003 and a MBA degree from the George Washington
University in 1996. Prior to his appointment as director of the
Company, Dr. Lin has over 10 years of experience in securities and
investment banking industry. He is also a director of Waterland
Securities Co., Ltd. and had worked as the general manager of
Waterland Securities Investment Consulting Co., Ltd.

Mr. Lu Wen-yi, aged 57, graduated and received from the National
Chung Hsing University a Bachelor degree in Laws in 1973. Prior to his
appointment as director of the Company, Mr. Lu has over 22 years of
experience in real estate development and over 7 years of experience
in biotechnology industry. He is currently a CEO of High Sierra Biotech
LLC. and the general manager of &N ZHE R AR AR
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Biographical Details of Directors

ESER

Mr. Cheng Dar-terng, aged 56, is an executive director of the BRERE LR E  S6h AARITEE - I
o Company. Mr. Cheng obtained a Master degree in Business GHEREFEREEENTAE - BAEIEE
// Management from University of Dallas in the United States. He was BETEG -R-AAEF+—-—AZ+=
appointed as a director of Guangzhou Mayer on 23 November 1995. AEZEABINERESE - F L LRI

He is currently a director of Taiwan Mayer. BEAREETES -

Mr. Chiang Jen-chin, aged 42, is an executive director of the BLCSBELE D25 AR ITESZ A
Company responsible for financial activities of the Group. He has over EAEBPB I EABBI6FNHER
16 years of experience in the steel pipe and sheet industry. Mr. Chiang MIRITHEKS  BRRE/AEXHBLE

is currently the manager to the general manager office of Taiwan EREIR o
Mayer.
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Hsiao Ming-chih, aged 48, is a non-executive director of the BEELLE  48m ARFFERTES -
Company. Mr. Hsiao holds a Bachelor degree in Commerce from BEEEERNRERBEHE  ESHE
the Accounting Faculty of Tung Hai University. Mr. Hsiao is currently Braf -HRRIAEXIAKE 7
the general manager of Taiwan Mayer, the Chairman of Fullchamp KEeEBRERMDERAG(EKXKNEEER
Technologies Co., Ltd. (“Fullchamp”) and a director of Tze Shin FEEBEEBEBRHOHBERATES -
International Company Limited.

Mr. Huang Chun-fa, aged 51, is a non-executive director of the BEFBREE S5 ARRIERITES -
Company. Mr. Huang has held senior positions in various listed BEELECEEEZE LT ARIBESHE
companies in Taiwan and is currently the chairman of Durban I BAELZHERODBRAFESK
Development Company Limited, the chairman of Tze Shin International S EEERNDERATEERNNAESETD
Company Limited and the chairman of Taiwan Mayer. EER-

Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHITES

Mr. Lin Sheng-bin, aged 43, is an independent non-executive director MEBEE 435 ARAIBYIFRITTE
of the Company. Mr. Lin holds a Master degree in Finance from EMEABRBERBEUFERE FES
National Chung-Cheng University. He has worked as the section staff BhAE 20 - M A SR &8 B AL E

member, commissioner, auditor and the supervisor of the Regulatory SFEHEERZESE —H (AHETA
Commission for Securities and Futures, under the Finance Ministry of AEE)RE HE BEEMhFELHA(BRE
Taiwan and the supervisor of First Taiwan Securities Inc. He is currently BIRRRERGEESFRNDEBRAAE

the executive vice president of Sinopac Securities Corp. and directors ZA BEKERBEFKRNHER AR ZE
of Giga Trend International Venture Investment Corp. and Gigawin Bueid PR EERBIERERN AR
International Venture Investment Corp. RElkEmEERAERNERAGZES -
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Huang Jui-hsiang, aged 47, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Huang obtained a Master degree in
Accountancy from National Chengchi University. He has over 14 years
of experience in the accounting field. He had worked as the assistant
manager in the audit services department of KPMG in Taiwan.

Mr. Alvin Chiu, aged 47, is an independent non-executive director
of the Company. Mr. Chiu graduated from the University of Southern
California in 1983 majoring in Economics. He has extensive commercial
and retail banking experience in the U.S. He had worked as the vice
president and branch manager of First Central Bank in Los Angeles,
California for eight years. Mr. Chiu is now the managing director of
Pacific Links Group Limited and Pacific Connections Group Limited. He
has experience in China trades, importation and wholesale industries.
He is also involved in the contract manufacturing, electronics and
original equipment manufacturing (“OEM") assembly business in
Greater China.

ESBERE

BWMEEE 475 ARFRELIFNTE
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Senior Management

Mr. Shen Heng-chiang, aged 53 is the general manager of
Guangzhou Mayer responsible for the Group’s sales and marketing
activities. Mr. Shen graduated from the faculty of industrial
management in Tam Shui Institute of Business Administration College
in 1976. Mr. Shen has over 24 years of experience in the steel industry.
Prior to his appointment as the general manager of Guangzhou Mayer
on 23 November 1995, Mr. Shen had worked as general manager of
Yungfa Steel Corp., Limited. He is currently a committee member of
the Taiwan Investment Enterprise Association in Guangzhou and a

senior management staff of Taiwan Mayer.

Mr. Chang Yin-kwang, aged 67, is the chief business consultant
of Guangzhou Mayer responsible for its overall business strategy
formulation. He has over 33 years of experience in the steel industry
through working in a number of steel companies. He had worked
for Taiwan Iron Manufacturing Corporation Limited and China Steel
Corporation. He was a director and the vice general manager of
Guangzhou Mayer for the period from November 1998 to May 2003.

Mr. Shen Chin-an, aged 46, is the deputy general manager of
Guangzhou Mayer responsible for sales activities. He holds a Bachelor
degree in Japanese language from SooChow University. Mr. Shen
joined the Group on 12 January 1999. Having ample experience in
steel industry, Mr. Shen had worked for Ta Fu Steel Industrial Co.,

Limited and Shang Fu Steel Industrial Co., Limited.

Mr. Huang Yu-chi, aged 39, is the deputy general manager
of Guangzhou Mayer responsible for financial management in
Guangzhou Mayer. He is also the secretary to board of directors of
Guangzhou Mayer. He is now a student seating for doctoral degree in
Jinan University and holds a bachelor degree in Industrial Engineering
from Tung Hai University. Prior to joining the Group on 5 September

1996, he had worked as a senior officer of Taiwan Mayer.

Ms. Su Li-jung, aged 48, is the administration manager of
Guangzhou Mayer responsible for procurement activities. Ms. Su
graduated from the Faculty of Dance and Music of Chinese Culture
University majoring in dancing. Prior to joining the Group on 4 March
2003, she had worked as the assistant manager of Nahuaou Co.,
Limited and manager of Hong Kong International Insurance Agent.
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Biographical Details of Senior Management
and Company Secretary
BEREEABRATGAMEERS

Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Lai Yin Tommy, aged 36, is also the financial controller
and qualified accountant of the Group and a member of the senior
management of the Company. He is an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Acacountants and a member of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chan has over
13 years of experience in audit and accounting field. Prior to joining
the Company, he held the posts of financial controller and company
secretary of a listed company in Hong Kong.
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Report of the Directors

EERE

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial EEENREETERBREAR(TAQA])
statements of Mayer Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its LEMBAR (ABIAER])HE-_ZEZ
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended +tHF+ A=+ HIFEZFRIERE
31 December 2007. B o

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of FEXEKED T
Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The ARBIZETBESABRELER  HRBAR
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the financial Bl EBE R B mKM 23 -
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and REBFRNREBRBE D BT Z RIR

geographical segments is set out in note 5 to the financial statements. BN ERIR T
Results and Dividends FERRER

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2007 and the AEEBHZ2-_ZEZT+F+_A=+—H81I1t
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out FEZHEMARRAGRANEERZB 2
in the financial statements on pages 45 to 49. AR R I T MR EASE EH498 ©

The directors recommend the payment of final dividend of RMB2 cents EERBRNRARETREER2Y) AR

per ordinary share, totaling RMB11,520,000. ks & $£11,520,0007T A R o
Summary Financial Information MBERREE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group AREBBETF 2 EBEUREELBER
for the last five years is set out on pages 4 to 5. BHNFELESE -

Property, Plant and Equipment M HBRRE

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of REBEZYE HBENRERFEFRAZE
the Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the financial  EFHIEH NI IEHEM 18 -

statements.

Share Capital g 2

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year RRABRARERNZ S B FIFE N R
are set out in note 35 to the financial statements. FMIEE35 -
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Report of the Directors

Reserves

Details of movements of the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 37 to the financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2007
amounted to RMB152,521,000 (2006: RMB138,599,000).

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest and the five largest customers accounted for 30% and
56% of the Group's total turnover for the Year, respectively. The
largest and the five largest suppliers accounted for 38% and 80% of
the Group’s purchases for the year, respectively.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major
customers and suppliers.

Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme was adopted on 24 May 2004 (the “Share
Option Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentive and
to recognize the contribution of the eligible participants to the growth
of the Group and will expire on 24 May 2014. Under the Share Option
Scheme, the Board may grant options to eligible full time employees,
including any executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
directors, and consultants or advisers of the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries.

EERE
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Report of the Directors

EERE

Share Option Scheme (Continued) BB ETE (&)

> Up to 31 December 2007, no options have been granted since the HE-_ZEZ+F+-_A=+—H BBK
adoption of the Share Option Scheme. The total number of shares TE o B R 4% DA PR 7 48 95 (T {A] BB I -
in respect of which options may be granted under the Share Option ERERNTREELEBAET - BIEBER
Scheme and any other option schemes is not permitted to exceed EFTE R AR E MBS AR 2
30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time, BEIRERT S R 2R BT EBIEAN T
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number TREBEBEITRA 230% ° FEAREARRD A
of shares in respect of which options may be granted to any individual REHEAET » EMFE M EAR]
in any year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the issued share RERE ZEREMS N 2 RHEE T 58
capital of the Company, without prior approval from the Company’s BARNBRETREAZ21% °
shareholders.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant to the 10 ERENHERDABREZARETI0FER
years of the date of grant. No minimum period for which an option BERE T - I EBRE N AR EEREZ R
must be held is required. The exercise price, which is determined by NHE -EFeMETZITEENAEAN
the Board, is the highest of: (i) the closing price per share on the date T&HEzEaE  ((WRMREEEHZF
of grant; (i) the average closing price per share for the five business MU B 5 (i R EE R B H g A (E
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal LBEAZIFHERKHE : RGINVRHDEE -
value of a share.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the BE - HEIEREXATZLE™
Company’s Listed Securities x5

During the year, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the FRN - RARRSIEEAMEARMEEE -
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed shares. HERBRIARNR Z EHMMG -
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Report of the Directors

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Lai Yueh-hsing
Mr. Lo Haw

Mr. Cheng Dar-terng
Mr. Chiang Jen-chin
Dr. Lin Meng-chang
Mr. Lu Wen-yi

Non-executive directors

Mr. Hsiao Ming-chih
Mr. Huang Chun-fa

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Huang Jui-hsiang
Mr. Lin Sheng-bin
Mr. Alvin Chiu

In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, each of Mr. Lo Haw, Mr. Cheng Dar-terng, Mr. Chiang
Jen-chin and Mr. Hsiao Ming-chih will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election.

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 15 to 17.

EEHE

B5E
RENRBEAREEN AATZEE
mF -

BITES
R B A
BESTE
WERTE
‘st
MEEB L
AXFELLE

HHUITES

AR EEE
BREE

i

BYFHTES

'imE Rt

MREETH S5 A4

HRELE
RIBARFABERADANFE 210G BESL
£oBEREE BCREERBHEE

EEERREERRBFAE tRESE
HEREHNTAEREE -

KRB EEZBEHNEBISEITE -

F #2007 ERege il A 23



Report of the Directors

EERE

i

&
Directors’ Service Contracts BEECRKEEN
4 Each of the executive directors has entered into a service agreement ESHITESECHARRGI Y —HNLHE
with the Company for an initial term of one year commencing from EEXAZRTEH AR —F 2 RE S
f their respective dates of appointment and shall continue thereafter HEEeSREFED BEE2RBRIIEEAN—FR
from year to year until and unless terminated by either party by giving B—HBEE TR @A ZEMEEAEMN
to the other party not less than three months’ prior written notice. myAKLIEAILE -

Each of the non-executive directors and independent non-executive ZIPTEERBIIIFRITESCEHAR
directors has entered into a service agreement with the Company for FEY—HENFTHBRESEA 2T HER
an initial term of one year commencing from their respective dates of = AH—F 2 REHE - BE LB IEEM
appointment and shall continue thereafter from year to year until and —HABR—HELIPR=ERAZEMNE
unless terminated by either party by giving to the other party not less AN FPIALKIEAIE -

than three months’ prior written notice.

Save as disclosed above, no directors proposed for re-election at the M EXFEEN  BERERERERF
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service agreement with AKeERZET Z7EEHARNANREIYTA]
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within EARNB R —FRNEE CEERERIN K
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory 1 Z Rz -

compensation.

The Company has received from each of its independent non- AKANBEBEESBEIIIENTESRIEH
executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence in Fre&s EmR A (T ETREBN) 3131
2007 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of MEER_SEELF 2B MEMEL ZF
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and as at the EERE MARAFRETEBER A28
date of this report, the Company still considers the independent non- MRR BB IERITEEEFB I HAL
executive directors to be independent.

Management Contracts BEEEN

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the BERFANFI LK TFTE S MARE RAE
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company and the BT KD ERZEERITHRZEL -
Group was entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts EEREHZER

Saved as disclosed in note 45 to the financial statements, no director BB SRR AT B E I MEES
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of REARNBEZXEER AR R R EA MM E
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or NAERIVEAEEEBEMEBERN 2EM
any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year. BHTRHEEERRER °
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Report of the Directors

EERE

Interests and Short Positions of the Directors RKABEBEERFETHRAEZ
and Chief Executives of the Company EEZRRE

As at 31 December 2007, the interests and short positions of RZZEZLF+_A=+—H KRA&
the directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, EFEERFETHRABRARAISHEEAE
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its BOEE (FE R BB EMEST1EEZ S KA
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the E1&0 (1B 5 KHE BRI EXVER) < &
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong BN ERETPHEAEREZEN
Kong (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company and the Stock B E G EEXVERET M8 BB & AN 7]
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including RELH(BEREEBEXER BN E
interests and short positions which they have taken, or deemed to EREHBBZRERMAR)  BEFEK
have taken under such provisions), or which were required, pursuant A& 6B B 352 16 ZE # A BT sl B 5 il - i*ﬁ
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register required to be BEMBRAALMARIEFHETIESRR
kept therein, or which were required pursuant to the Model Code for MIZESTE|Z B EBANERNR A &Hﬁ*“ﬁﬁ
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies in the Listing ZHERRORBIAT ¢

Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as

follows:

Long positions in the share capital of Mayer Steel Pipe REGTHERRDERAT([ABEE])

Corporation (“Taiwan Mayer") BERzHFRE
Approximate
Number of ordinary shares in Taiwan Mayer % of
AEXTEBERHE shareholding
Name of director Personal Family Corporate Other Total FREN
EEgE fBA i3 AT Hith &t Bak
Mr. Lo Haw 254,108 1,099 11,781,676 - 12,036,883 6.55%
BmERE
Mr. Cheng Dar-terng - 25,014 3,170,000 - 3,195,014 1.74%
EERR A
Mr. Chiang Jen-chin 6,003 - - - 6,003 0.00%
B8RSt
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EERE

> Interests and Short Positions of the Directors APAEERFETHRAEZ
and Chief Executives of the Company EERKE (E)
(Continued)
r
Long positions in the share capital of Guangzhou Mayer Corp., REMNEGROERLAT ([EMETD R
Ltd. (“Guangzhou Mayer") b 3
Approximate
Number of ordinary shares in Taiwan Mayer % of total
BEMNEZTZEREE shareholding
Name of director Personal Family Corporate Other #IFHREMHH
Y fEA Rik AT Hit [Eise
Mr. Lo Haw - - 12,800,000 - 6.40%
BESTE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, none of the BEXIEEEN RZEELF+ A
directors or chief executives of the Company nor their respective E-f—— H WEAQRFESHEZITHRA
associates, had any interests and short positions in the shares, CHREZTEZBMBEATRAABGEA
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its ET‘MH BEE(EERBARBEBRMZE
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),  XVZ5) > &5 - ARG R EEETHES
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock BiEEAE KB E R EXVEET RS Z/E
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including MaRRNA NEZFT (BEREABIEX
interests and short positions which they have taken, or deemed to WRANEEREHERE ZERNAR) @ 3
have taken under such provisions), or which were required, pursuant RIEFE 5 K EAE 150 8835215 78 & A P ait
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register required to be Zft REBELMBARNLETAGES
kept therein, or which were required pursuant to the Model Code for ETEARIWBESFAZHATEEAAE R
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies in the Listing NAIRBRA o RRkE SEEFHE
Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, and ETHAEHFEES QZEM%%ER,%-H\

none of the directors or chief executives, or their respective spouses BTRXBMEBEEETMARERARAZESRZ
or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the R - IR AR E E N B R ﬁﬁ&’{ﬁj
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights at any ZERER o

time during the year.
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Substantial Shareholders

So far as the directors of the Company are aware, the person/entity
(not being a director or a chief executive of the Company) who has
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company, which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part IV of the SFO, were as follows:

Long positions in the share capital of the Company

EERE

FERR

RARAEEHRA TIAL BB QLI
ARREFLTIBTRABR) BERER
R EIERPIEIVEBFE2M3D B2 B E
ARARARERARA B K& A8 6D
ZHEZIORBMT

RAEDTREZHFR

Approximate percentage
of Company'’s

Capacity and issued share capital
Name Nature of interest Number of shares ERAT BT
BRREB BORERNE BRERDEAE BRAMAB D
Taiwan Mayer (Note 1) Corporate 300,000,000 52.08%
agxR (K1) NS
Mayer Corporation Development Corporate 300,000,000 52.08%
International Limited (“BVI Mayer”) NG|
Mayer Corporation Development
International Limited ( [BVI Mayer] )
Mr. Cheng Wen-ching (Note 2) Personal 40,000,000 6.95%
BYELE (Wit2) fEA
Brocheng International Limited (Note 3) Corporate 20,000,000 3.47%
Brocheng International Limited (47:#3) NG|
Note 1:  BVI Mayer is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan Mayer. Taiwan Mayer Hfat1 : BVI MayerBaEXD 2 2 EWB AR 1B
is deemed to be interested in the 300,000,000 shares held by BVI Mayer BEFRBAEGD aEXTHRAES
under the SFO. BVI MayerffT#§ 7 2 300,000,0008% i 15 =~ 1
Note 2: Mr. Cheng Wen-ching personally holds 20,000,000 shares and indirectly itz - 883 5t A 8 A+ 520,000,0008% I 15 -
holds 20,000,000 shares through Brocheng International Limited which is BREREHER 2 E R A FBrocheng
an investment holding company owned by his families. He is deemed to International Limitedf& % %20,000,0004%
be interested in the shares held by Brocheng International Limited under B - IRIEELENMEEEMEXVE BT
Part XV of the SFO. 1% & ¥ B Brocheng International Limited$ A&
iR 1p 2 o e
Note 3: Brocheng International Limited is wholly owned by Mr Cheng Wen-ching H17#3 ¢ Brocheng International Limited /3 i &5 X &

and his families which held 20,000,000 shares. Mr Cheng Wen-ching
are deemed to be interested in the shares held by Brocheng International
Limited under Part XV of the SFO.

LEERAERKE2ERE  #7620,000,000
IR AR 17 = 1R #5 38 5 M BA G 16 I SEXVE - &
X BE 5T A 448 A ¥ B Brocheng International
Limited# 5 A AR 15 < # % ©
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EERE

Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, the directors of
the Company are not aware of any other person/entity (not being a
director or a chief executive of the Company) who has interests or

short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company,
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part IV of the SFO, or who is directly or
indirectly interested in 10% or more of the shares of the Company or
equity interest in any member of the Group representing 10% or more

of the equity interest in such company.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any directors, supervisors or their respective spouse or minor children,

or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,

or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the

directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 45 to the
financial statements also constituted connected transactions under
the Listing Rules, required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The following transactions between certain
connected parties (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the Company
have been entered into and/or are ongoing for which relevant

announcements, if necessary, had been made by the Company in

accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

M

28 Mayer Holdings Limited

On 28 October 2001, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Ms. Shih Hui-ping, the spouse of Mr. Lo Haw (being a
director of the Company), pursuant to which the Group agreed
to pay a monthly rental of RMB10,000 in respect of the Group’s
occupation of Shanghai office for a term commencing on 28
October 2001. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the rental is based on normal commercial terms and is conducted
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group. This
transaction constitutes a de minimis continuing connected
transaction exempted from the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements in accordance
with Rule 14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules.
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Connected Transactions (Continued)

)

(3

4

On 1 May 2005, the Group entered into an aircraft lease
agreement with Daily Air Corporation, Inc. (the “Daily Air")
regarding the leasing of two aircrafts and the provision of
consultancy services for a term of three years commencing on 1
May 2005. Mr. Huang Chun-fa, a non-executive director of the
Company, is a substantial shareholder of Daily Air. Pursuant to
the lease agreement, Daily Air agreed to pay a monthly rental
fee and consultancy fee payable of US$26,000 for each aircraft
and US$10,000, for the three years ending 30 April 2008,
respectively. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the lease rental is based on normal commercial terms and is
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group. This transaction constitutes a continuing connected
and discloseable transaction exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements in accordance with Rule
14A.38 of the Listing Rules.

The Disposal of Fullchamp

On 13 April 2007, Sunbeam Group Limited (“Sunbeam”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
Share Disposal Agreement with Taiwan Mayer, the ultimate
controlling Shareholder, pursuant to which Sunbeam agreed to
sell and Taiwan Mayer agreed to purchase 11,960,000 shares
of Fullchamp, representing approximately 28.51% of the total
issued share capital of Fullchamp and representing the entire
equity interest of the Company in Fullchamp, for a consideration
of NT$12.50 (equivalent to approximately RMB2.9) per share
and a total consideration of NT$149.5 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB34.7 million) in cash. Accordingly, the Disposal
of Fullchamp constitutes a major and connected transaction for
the Company under the Listing Rules.

Acquisition and Aircraft Sale Agreement

ROC Advance Limited (“"ROC Adavance”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, has entered into the Aircraft Sale
Agreement with Sino Regal Assets Limited (”Sino Regal”)
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan Mayer, the ultimate
controlling Shareholder on 13 April 2007 regarding the purchase
of two Dornier 228-212 aircrafts from Sino Regal for a total
consideration of approximately US$2 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$15.6 million). And the Acquisition and Aircraft
Sale Agreement constitutes a discloseable and connected
transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules.

EERE
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EERE

Connected Transactions (Continued)

(5

(6)

Lease Assignment Agreement

On 31 April 2007, Sino Regal, ROC Advance and Daily Air
executed the Lease Assignment Agreement. Pursuant to the
Lease Assignment Agreement, Sino Regal, as the assignor, has
transferred all its rights and responsibilities at the capacity of the
lessor, including but not limited to receive rental fee from Daily
Air, under the Aircraft Lease Agreement to ROC Advance, as the
assignee. ROC Advance has agreed to continuously lease the
Aircrafts to Daily Air for the period commencing from the date of
the Lease Assignment Agreement to 30 April 2008.

Pursuant to the Lease Assignment Agreement, the Directors expect
that the annual cap for the rental fee payable by Daily Air to ROC
Advance for the period from the date of the Lease Assignment
Agreement to 30 April 2008 will be US$552,000 per year.

Raw Material Purchase Agreement

On 13 April 2007, Guangzhou Mayer, a 81.4% indirectly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Raw Material
Purchase Agreement with Taiwan Mayer pursuant to which
Guangzhou Mayer agreed to purchase and Taiwan Mayer agreed
to sell raw materials for the period commencing from 1 April
2007 to 31 March 2010.

Pursuant to the Raw Material Purchase Agreement, the Directors
expect that the annual caps for the Raw Material Purchase for
the three years ending 31 March 2010 will be US$3.9 million,
US$4.29 million and US$4.719 million respectively.

During the year, Guangzhou Mayer has purchased raw materials
from Taiwan Mayer approximately US$1.4 million.

Other Matters

Q)]

Acquisition of property

On 11 June 2007, the Company entered into an agreement with
Da Cin Development Co., Ltd., an independent third party, to
acquire the Property at a total consideration of NT$880,000,000
(equivalent to RMB197 million). The property, an industrial
building, is situated at Land No. 14, Kuang Fu Sec., Hsinchu City,
Taiwan with a site of approximately 3,664.54 square metres.

Annual Report 2007

B3
(5)

(6)

B (&)
HEEZENS
RZZEZ+LFWHPA=+—H"Sino
Regal * IS R IELMEFEHEE R
WiE o IRIBEHEEZEWZE - Sino Regal
(EREZEAN) ERABRBEREKEER
HIEAEHEAZFEEFNREEME (B
FEETRARMEZMEWRNES) T
g (fEREZEAN) - IBECREEE
ﬁﬁ“ﬂﬂ_ﬂ%%?ﬁﬁﬂﬁ* R EE R
EAPRE_TTNFNA=+HIE-

BIEHEEE R
ﬁ—;uﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬂi /\E@ﬂ
=+ HIEERE ﬁn c AT I

TH&ZE&HEM%&SSZ,OOO%E °

%%i‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ g

JR A BHER B 10 5
RZZBZA+FMA+=H AR
B81 4%F‘ﬂ§‘%ﬁ?&2Bﬁ%“ﬁf*ﬂ\l%
THEAEETIIEMBRE R Z
Bt BINEERRE ﬂﬁ,\&éﬁ%%ﬁ
REHERME A _ZT+LFMOA
—BRE-_F— E\E:H:-i——ﬁto

BERMBRERZ EFRHEE
TE-ZTE=A=+—-RHI=%F" &
MEHREE 2 FE EBR %5 5B /A3,900,000
% 7T * 4,290,000 jT & 4,719,0003
5T o

FRBMNETREMEEFERRELD
1,400,0003E 7L Z B £} ©

HttE18R

4))

D LIES

—EEEFARAT B AREEB
NEZFERRAEBERGBBER ARG
%% » bA880,000,0007C# & ¥ (HE
#197,000,0007T A R #) Z B8R & U
B—EYE ZEMERMLNEESE
MM ER 4R TEEF - 15
#1493,664.54°F 7 K ©



Report of the Directors

Other Matters (Continued)
(1) Acquisition of property (Continued)

An initial refundable deposit of NT$24,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB5.6 million) was paid by the Company on 11 June 2007. The
Acquisition of Property was completed in February 2008. Details
of the Acquisition of Property are set out in the Company’s
circular dated 10 July 2007.

(2) Issue of 96,000,000 New Subscription Shares

On 13 August 2007, the Company entered into seven
Subscription Agreements with seven Subscribers (the
“Subscribers”), an independent third parties, whereby the
Company agreed to issue 96,000,000 new Subscription Shares
at a price of HK$0.60 per Subscription Share. The Subscription
Shares were issued under the existing issue mandate to issue
shares granted to the Directors at the Company’s AGM held on
31 May 2007.

The net proceeds from the Subscription amounted to
approximately HK$57.3 million out of which approximately
HK$23 million will be used as partial payment of the
consideration for the Acquisition of Property as mentioned in (1)
above and the remaining balance of HK$34.3 million will be used
as additional working capital of the Group.

All 96,000,000 new Subscription Shares were issued and allotted
to the Subscribers on 27 August 2007. These shares rank pari
passu with the existing shares of the Company in all respects.

Senior Management and Company Secretary

Biographical details of the senior management and company secretary
of the Group are set out on pages 18 to 19.

Auditors

The financial statements have been audited by CCIF CPA Limited who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By order of the Board

Lai Yueh-hsing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 April 2008
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERBE

The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate ARABRMBFCEE AU ARAQAREESR
governance to the Company's healthy growth and has devoted BZEZH TEREAZNIEHERERK
considerable efforts to identify and formalize the best corporate BEHAEEBRTECRELEERER -
governance practices appropriate to the needs of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the AKRABZEEERERNUETBHAERS
principles (“Principles”) and the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) FrERR([BXFT]) FEHLEmMRAN(TEM
as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG A Mg IUpE ¥ E AT AT (T
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing EEASFADFHY 2 RA(TRE]]) &8
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock (TSP RMESC)) BER - RIBBEXE
Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”). The Company has complied with most of ABTRIER —_EERFHHA—B 2 BH
the Code Provisions save for the Code Provisions on internal controls W et Em 2 AEBEEIEFRME X &
which are to be implemented for accounting periods commencing on BEATANEXA LI RAL2TFES T IREE (GF
or after 1 July 2005 pursuant to the CG Code and certain deviations BRI N RRBIE EFREBHFANE
from the Code Provisions in respect of Code Provisions A.4.1 and N e ARANAEHBEHMAECES AT U
A.4.2, details of which are explained below. The Company periodically ERZEFHEBERTALEERERZR
reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure that these E o

continue to meet the requirements of the CG Code.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its board of AKARFERIEES ([EFC]) ERER
directors (“Board”) in ensuring effective leadership and control of the AANRVERWBEE LR A NS IEERKE
Company and transparency and accountability of all operations. ERAFHAELRMEM  EE N -

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company ARAREFEBNLEERRINEREFELT :
are summarised as follows:

Board of Directors EEg
As at 31 December 2007, the Board consisted of six executive directors R-_ZEE+tF+_A=+—H EEgH

and five non-executive directors (of whom three are independent). NIMITEERNAMERTES (EF =
LAY A L) MK ©

The independent non-executive directors are all experienced individuals BYEITEEY ARATNREITE Kb
from a range of industries and geographies. Their mix of professional BEEEREB AT SEKEZHEE
skills and experience is an important element in the proper functioning FiEME s R ENEEe LS BEENRER
of the Board and in ensuring a high standard of objective debate and BKFEBARMARBREPEERAY
overall input to the decision-making process. The Board has received EENER -EEGCLBRESBIUIERTE
from each independent non-executive director a written confirmation ERH 2B LEHERE  WIEWMEE L
of their independence and has satisfied itself of such independence MR BEAFRILAEBH I BEH
up to the approval date of this report in accordance with the Listing BN AT e

Rules.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

The biographical details of the directors are provided on pages 15 to
17 of this report.

The Code Provision A.2.1 stipulated that the roles of chairman of the
Board (the “Chairman”) and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and chief executive officer
should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr Lai Yueh-hsing has been both the Chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company. Given the Company’s current stage of
development, the Board considers that vesting the roles of Chairman
and chief executive officer in the same person facilitates the execution
of the Company’s business strategies and maximizes effectiveness of
its operations. The Board shall nevertheless review the structure from
time to time and shall consider the appropriate adjustment should
suitable circumstance arise.

The Board at Work

The Board is accountable to shareholders for the activities and
performance of the group. It meets in person on a half-yearly basis and
on other occasions when a Board-level decision on a particular matter
is required. The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering corporate strategy, annual and interim results,
directors’ appointment, succession planning, risk management, major
acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions, and other significant
operational and financial matters.

The majority of Board meetings are scheduled to last one full day, with
directors receiving details of agenda items for decision and minutes of
committee meetings in advance of each Board meeting.

Although the capacity of any board to involve itself in the details of a
large international business is limited, the Company aims to provide
its independent non-executive directors with extensive exposure and
access to its operations and management. Over the past two years,
the number and duration of Board meetings have increased and the
Board agenda is structured to address the broad spectrum of key
governance issues on a regular and systematic basis.

TRERERE

BEE2(E)
BEEZAABRENRAFRFISEITE ©

SRMGXA2 AR EFEFE TR (XFE))E
THAFScABERBRED LT TEHE—A
RIS E - TERTRAHZIEHZBED
TRBERELAEZEINE -

BEELERTARRESTGERERITH
ﬁﬁo%%$¢l%%%?2?@%&’

EEERA AR -ATEFEZFERITH
BEMEAC  BRRATARBERR
BEERBRAKLE RS - AT EFED
BARBRIILEE TEZEENEARF
e E AR o

EEECEF
EXERAMAKREEFRRARABRRAR -
EXeNBRELESYFRTZESRS
%%'ﬁﬁfmm§$A¢ﬁ%m$ﬁﬁ
RZBH EFTCTHRAREXEEAHADL
XX FERFEXE EFZRMT &
TRE EREE EAKBE LELRE
AMLZGALEMEREENMHE 2 EEH -

RnEEEERIRE—EX ME=S
REBREFEEZMBWEERZIRRE
BLRESZEGZ@FLHK -

BEEAAREERAGZETERAAAR
WEREXBFE  EARBRDRNER
B IFMITE R RIZIEM MR B HEE R
BE -RBEMF EFEERIRER
ARERREBAMEN MESSHEZ
O EEEHERSMAESEREEE
EREH -

4

L7
)

-1

i

v
»
4

F #2007 ERege il A 33



Corporate Governance Report
TERERBE

The Board at Work (Continued) EEg2EF(E)
All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information EPEHESHYR BB HREL2BEHEE

as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a B WA EARWMERESERELRE - LA
view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and BRESREF L2 E AR L EGIE
regulations are followed. 58T

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional advice BUNESEEENARNBEEBRA TNSRKET
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making HEESR KhnEEgeREERE-BH
request to the Board. AN A A FE o

Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board to EEeRHRIEAEEEBRTZIENCES
management include the preparation of annual and interim accounts EBEREFERTHER UHESS
for Board approval before public reporting, execution of business RE IR - RITESSHHEMNZ
strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation EEERBELEG HTELSAPELERSR
of adequate systems of internal controls and risk management FEBEEREFUARETEBETHETE
procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory requirements and AR BIELFE ) o

rules and regulations.

The Group’s chief financial officer also attends all board meetings AEENBBETEEMEEZE SR -

to advise on corporate governance, risk management, statutory MEEER BERERE - EETHR &6
compliance, mergers and acquisitions, and accounting and financial HIWEA RS HEEETRREER -
matters.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another. ExgXE s HERERAS -

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Board at all times met REBEE-_ZEZ+F+_A=+—HBLLEE
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment NAEMRE EFEH/F6LTHRIEHE
of at least three independent non-executive directors with at least ZAEGL—RBIERITES  HpEd

one independent non-executive director processing appropriate — ZBUINTESAEEBAEEEELER
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial RS HAEENEEEERZIETE °

management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each AAFEBREASBIYIENTESRIE L
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant MBREREB I EIEE 2 EMFERE
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all ReARARE RELMRBIME 2B
independent non-executive directors to be independent in accordance M REBIUFATERHEBIL -
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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TEERBE

The Board at Work (Continued) BEEgcEF(E)
The non-executive directors together have substantial experience in ERNITEERET BE g1 0ER
fields of auditing, business, accounting, corporate internal control MERNEEES T OEELELR -5

and regulatory affairs. Through active participation in Board meetings, BEBL2EEEEER XEEERER
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of MW/ REBZIREETSETLZESRS
interests and serving on Board committees, all non-executive directors PEIEHTEESHAQRNR ZENIEEEL
make various contributions to the effective direction of the Company. ZBERE °

The Company has not yet adopted Code Provision A.4.1 which ANR TN ARFA ST ANESTA L - SZIER
provides that non-executive directors should be appointed for a FIHRTEEEATERIETTE A
specific term, subject to re-election. All the non-executive directors BEXENMRB - ARAZEIERTESZ
of the Company are not appointed for a specific term although in ZEEEETH HER LREHEAR
practice they are subject to retirement on rotation and re-election at BARRIZEZERMARINARRRERF KX
the Company’s annual general meetings pursuant to the Company’s 2 LRERTREEET-

Articles of Association.

Each newly appointed director receives comprehensive, formal and BEHEFEESHRENELSERSES—
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as HEERFAEMBZZEXNFEERL - N
to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business HRESBETHRARNGZEGREE A
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/ FTOBHEBEREREMBEEBRERE
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant TZEE-

regulatory requirements.
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TERERRE

Committees £Eg

The monitoring and assessment of certain governance matters are ATERSEECERERTHIEEHET

allocated to three committees which operate under defined terms of —REEg  ZEZECREBERTREE
¥ | reference. The composition of the committees during 2006/07 and up & [ & {F - Eﬁ\:gg/—/ftifé}}ﬁﬁ

to the date of this report is set out in the table below. ANEHRAMIL EES7AKHINTE

Directors Audit Committee Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee

2= ENEES FHEES REEEE

Executive Director $1{TEE

Lai Yueh-hsing (Chairman) F8 28 (/) Chairman *J& Chairman *J&

Lo Haw Z&%

Cheng Dar-terng %3 &
Chiang Jen-chin #{— &k
Lin Meng-chang # &
Lu Wen-yi &3

Non-Executive Directors kI {TEE
Hsiao Ming-chih EB&IE Member 5% & Member X &
Huang Chun-fa &&3%

Independent Non-Executive Directors B kI ITEE

Lin Sheng-bin #REEXH, Member 5% & Member % & Member X &
Huang Jui-hsiang =+ Chairman /& Member i & Member i &

Alvin Chiu 8 1E Member 5% & Member X & Member 5k &
Audit Committee EREEE

The Audit Committee is comprised of three independent non- BERLZEESH BB ULIENTESEK
executive directors who together have substantial experience in the HERET BE CEBEANEETER
fields of accounting, business, corporate governance and regulatory FTEEELELE

affairs.

The committee is responsible for monitoring the reporting, accounting, ZESBEEERTTHRERE 2B - @5t
financial and control aspects of the executive management’s activities. HENEEERE ZESN 2 HERASE
It has full access to the Group’s chief financial officer to hear directly B S48 BRI EZABPIRNE
any concerns of the internal audit department that may have arisen TEZTERBE 2T HEE -

during the course of the department’s work.

The committee also monitors the appointment and function of the

SNEEAEEIIERZBMZRRER

T m

Group's external auditor.

36 VEVEI M ERETNNICT]  Annual Report 2007



Corporate Governance Report

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 22 August 2005
and is comprised of three independent non-executive directors, one
non-executive director and one executive director (as the Committee
Chairman).

The committee determines the compensation structure and rewards for
the chief executive officer and other executive directors and monitors
the policies being applied in remunerating other senior executives
in the Group. In addition, it has responsibility for reviewing and
making appropriate recommendations to the Board on management
development and succession plans for executive directors and senior
management levels.

The fundamental policy underlying the Company’s remuneration and
incentive schemes is to link total compensation for senior management
with the achievement of annual and long-term performance goals.
By providing total compensation at competitive industry levels for
delivering on-target performance, the Company seeks to attract,
motivate and retain key executives essential to its long-term success.
Senior management incentive schemes include any equity component
that is designed to align the long-term interest of management with
those of shareholders.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 22 August 2005
and is comprised of three independent non-executive directors, one
non-executive director and one executive director (as the Committee
Chairman).

The committee is responsible for the identification and evaluation of
candidates for appointment or reappointment as a director, as well as
the development and maintenance of the Group’s overall corporate
governance policies and practices.
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TERERBE

Board and Committee Attendance

The Board held ten regular meetings in 2007 and the average
attendance rate was 48%. Details of the attendance of individual
directors at Board meetings and committee meetings during the
2006/07 financial year are set out in the table below.

EEERBEECHER
EFEN - TTLFEBRTHRESEH

FHHEERIB% - R_TTXR T
HEE ANEENEEFEEeRNEERE
BRZHFEFBHN TR

Number of meetings attended/held

HEBITEBRRY

Remuneration Nomination
Directors Full Board Audit Committee = Committee Committee
5= g BEREES yMEsS REZEES
Executive Directors SI{TESE
Lai Yueh-hsing #8 & &1 10/10 2/2 11
Lo Haw Z#% 2/10
Cheng Dar-terng &3 & 3/10
Chiang Jen-chin 1=k 10/10
Lin Meng-chang #R# 4/10
Lu Wen-yi @303 4/10
Non-Executive Directors JF#{TEE
Hsiao Ming-chih EE&LE 7/10 2/2 11
Huang Chun-fa &&3 2/10
Independent Non-Executive Directors B FHTES
Lin Sheng-bin #REZIE, 2/10 1/2 1/2 11
Huang Jui-hsiang =I5 £E 3/10 2/2 2/2 11
Alvin Chiu fERE 6/10 212 2/2 171
Average attendance rate 48% 83% 80% 100%

FHHRER
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at least
14 days before the meetings while reasonable notice is generally given
for other Board meetings. For committee meetings, notices are served
in accordance with the required notice period stated in the relevant
terms of reference.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before
each Board meeting or to the relevant committee members at least 2
days before each Remuneration Committee Meeting or at least 4 days
before each Audit Committee meeting to keep the directors apprised
of the latest developments and financial position of the Company
and to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management whenever necessary.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept
by the company secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated to
directors for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting
and the final version is open for directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also
contain provisions requiring directors to abstain from voting and not
to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in
which such directors or any of their associates have a material interest.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for ensuring that an adequate system of
internal controls is maintained within the Group, and for reviewing its
effectiveness through the Audit Committee.

The internal control system, which includes a defined management
structure with specified limits of authority, is designed to (a) help the
achievement of business objectives, and safeguard the Group's assets;
(b) ensure proper maintenance of accounting records; and (c) ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.
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TERERRE

Internal Control and Risk Management AEEREERERERE (F)
(Continued)
The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but ANBEE R G EREABEIEBYE 2R

not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to FRFITeHIEE SRR E L -
manage, but not to eliminate, risks of failure in achieving the Group's AREBEIWIEHRREERAEEBZ

objectives. Z B e

The processes to identify and manage key risks to the achievement REEEBIRERAEEXEKEE 2 E
of the Group’s strategic objectives are an integral part of the internal B 2 BRI N EPEEIE RN Al sk 2 B o
control environment. Such processes include strategic planning, ZERERREREE ZASREEE -

the appointment of senior management, the regular monitoring TFEESIRRIB IR B AR T MIRE A K
of performance, control over capital expenditure and investments SIERKTEzLE BELRRERIREZE
and the setting of high standards and targets for safety, health and KER-

environmental performance.

HEHEGRNMEERIERR -

WEH

The management maintains and monitors the system of controls on BIRE RS
an ongoing basis.

The Group's internal audit department, under the supervision of B e EE ZK%IW*B%E PP =
the chief financial officer, independently reviews these controls and BUEBEZZEEE THEEERAR B
evaluates their adequacy, effectiveness and compliance, and reports BEEE ?—?é—\%ﬁm WEHEEZERBEZE
such findings directly to the Audit Committee on a regular basis. The EeERZELE - EECRBEZXELE
Board, through the Audit Committee assesses the effectiveness of /\Hzi.%ﬁz’&%@ PR B 4% 1| 3 8 2 R A

the Group’s internal control system which covers all material controls, NEBEGI R BRIEFT A E RIRIERE - 1
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk BIfs s 2B RASHMITES - ARREBEIEDN

management functions on an annual basis. B o

During 2006/2007, based on the evaluations made by the MNZEEN/ZELFE AEEEE UM%
management, the chief financial officer and external auditors, the BEE RN EAREIEL 25T B E
Audit Committee was satisfied that nothing has come to its attention E@Ef HIT TMBTNSHEREZ
to cause the Audit Committee to believe that the system of internal ZESRERNBEZERRABEMTE  BA
control is inadequate; and there is an ongoing process to identify, EEEEHERT  FTHAEEENRE -
evaluation and manage significant risks faced by the Group.

External Auditor HMNEE 1% BL AT

The Company’s independent external auditor is CCIF CPA Limited. The AABVBILINEZHAN ARE S SRS
Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of the B ERAR - BEXRLECTEETEEELRE
external auditor and also reviews any non-audit functions performed HNEB AZ AT - A0 A% 5T ) (g S BE A R A
by the external auditor for the Group. In particular, the Committee AREBETZIFZERE LERTES
will consider, in advance of them being contracted for and performed, REANEZ BT O RTEREIT T/ER -
whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential material 19ERZSIEZEB eS| BUEMER
conflict of interest. EpiEEES
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Communications with Shareholders

The Company uses a number of formal communications channels to
account to shareholders for the performance of the Company. These
include the annual report and accounts, the interim report, periodic
company announcements made through the Stock Exchange, as
well as through the annual general meeting. The Company aims to
provide its shareholders and potential investors with high standards
of disclosure and financial transparency. In order to provide effective
disclosure to investors and potential investors and to ensure they
all receive equal access to the same information at the same time,
information considered to be of a price sensitive nature is released
by way of formal public announcements as required by the Listing
Rules. The Company also welcomes comments and questions from
shareholders at its annual general meeting.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Group has adopted procedures governing directors’ securities
transactions in compliance with the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

Employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive information of the Group are also subject to compliance with
guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.

Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the Directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
regarding directors’ securities transactions.

Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for
Accounts

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2007.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 43 to 44.
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TERERRE

Shareholder rights and investor relations REEFRIREEBRZ

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on PREER N ERAEREAE FUARZESTK
resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained in the Company’s RRRBEZEFEN AL EEZEEH
f Articles of Association. Details of such rights and procedures are Ble ZERMRBFZFAB EFTHRE
. included in all circulars to shareholders and will be explained during ZEREBKFHEHEY  WeReHBTE
the proceedings of meetings. Whenever voting by way of a poll EP FUAGRE o B BRIARE T AR IRE -
is required, the detailed procedures for conducting a poll will be EITRERRZFHMEFE T AR -
explained.

Poll results will be published in newspapers on the business day WERRERENRREA2 BB IEE
following the shareholders’ meeting and posted on the websites of AIEWE A - I 7B S P AL 34 o
the Stock Exchange.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each —EXRFE(BEERER)HRKREKX
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors. @ }EE&JMJ&@WN °

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships RABI TG HEREEBBREREE -
with its investors. Designated senior management maintain regular ETEaREEETHEREBIREE RSN
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast BETHR  FEMNBARRZ&ENMERE -
of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt WEEZIREYHESAERLERIE o

with in an informative and timely manner.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

®

CCIF

CCIF CPA LIMITED

20/F Sunning Plaza
10 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MAYER HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mayer
Holdings Limited (the “Company"”) set out on pages 45 to 136,
which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as
at 31 December 2007, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B AR E

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards EERBEBSHMASEMBZEBZY
“ on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public EHEITEZIE - ZEENERES
// Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical REMETEX ITIERARTSBEHE -
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable FEEERZEY R RRRCTEEEH
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from R VES IR 2 BETE ©

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence EZHEBRETER LIS E‘@Eﬁ%i&%
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The FIE BRI ESEBECEZRE -
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including B2z ARTZEA 2 H 8- ’F]?‘Earrﬁ
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial B RER ZEAREREM (T E PG
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk i EE RS ) 2 AE - EERZE AT G
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the B ZEAMEEERARARREREIEETNTF
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial MEVMGEHRRBBZNILEE LA
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in RIBEREFTEEEZEF  BIWEE LR
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on RAAMBEEREERIRERR - FZE
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes BEmefEdhmAgsrBREzreEr &
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the EAESHEZAEMN UMM B®RE
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well 22 255 N ERER o

as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and ELZHE ELEEXRERMS  BSH
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. BEZREBAOMIAE -

Opinion 2R

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and EERE AW BRRATEEEATH

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as MELEBBREETEATFI R EARQF
at 31 December 2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the Y EEERZZZ+F+A=+—H
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting ZHBIRRAKR BEEEEHZZBIEFE

Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the ZHEANBERERN  TEIRBEBA

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. AP ZIRERTEERR -
CCIF CPA Limited RESSTMEEMERLA
Certified Public Accountants HEEEAD

Hong Kong, 18 April 2008 B Z_EENFHATNAAB
Leung Chun Wa RIRE

Practising Certificate Number P04963 2 2 BR SR TEP04963

44 VEVER I IRUENINTIEE]  Annual Report 2007



Consolidated Income Statement

mE W E R

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

2007 2006
—EELHF ZEBEXRF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B RE FrARY FrARE
(as restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations HEREER
Turnover B 6 1,253,230 944,622
Cost of sales SHER A& (1,197,423) (883,072)
Gross profit EF 55,807 61,550
Other revenue Hibug 6 11,340 6,162
Other income Hag A 7 11,745 6,725
Distribution costs Balk =12 %N (13,681) (12,828)
Administrative expenses THREX (34,696) (27,540)
Other operating expenses HiEEx (2,899) (2,030)
Operating profit KERF 8 27,616 32,039
Finance costs & A 10 (19,233) (15,967)
Profit before taxation BRF AR F 8,383 16,072
Taxation BIE 11 (3,106) (2,426)
Profit from continuing operations FEREELZHT 5,277 13,646
Discontinued operations BRIEER
Profit/(Loss) from discontinued CRIEER BN (FE)
operations 12 11,634 (2,203)
Profit for the year FREF 16,911 11,443
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Consolidated Income Statement

mE W E R

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—ZEZ+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2007 2006
—EELF ZETRF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 FRARY FTARE
(as restated)
(&)
Attributable to: G :
Equity holders of the Company RAGIREREE A 13 13,802 12,042
Minority interests DEIR R 3,109 (599)
16,911 11,443
Dividends BRE 14 11,520 9,600
Earnings per share for profit FREQATRERE A
attributable to the equity holders EhEFz8R
of the Company during the year R 15
From continuing operations REFERLSEEK
— Basic — &R 0.83 cents % 2.61 cents 2
- Diluted —#8 N/A REA N/A 3 A
From discontinued operations RECHKIEER
— Basic — & K 1.86 cents 0.38 cents %
- Diluted -8 N/A T3 A N/A 7T~ F

The notes on pages 54 to 136 form an integral part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

4

As at 31 December 2007 W=—ZFELF+-A=+t—H &K

2007 2006
—EELHF ZETEREF
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
P 5E FrRARYE FARY
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE REE 18 117,110 207,796
Leasehold land and land use rights RIBCEHERBE
for own use under operating lease ERzHEELHRE
i {E A 19 8,416 8,638
Deposit for acquisition of property WY 2 1BS 20 192,142 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE 21 = 720
Goodwill EES 22 - 4,719
Deferred tax assets BERIEEE 24 = 27
317,668 221,900
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 25 169,214 217,615
Trade receivables Z 5 IR R 26 373,538 370,155
Prepayments, deposits and other TENHIE - Ee Rk
receivables =y E S 27 16,683 23,421
Financial assets at fair value through BAFENAEREE
profit or loss LEREE 28 15,633 -
Amount due from a related company JE U BE B A B FR 29 6,473 2,736
Pledged bank deposits BEIFRITER 30 46,537 8,652
Bank deposits RITFK 30 = 21,800
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMBEeFBEIER 31 67,461 45,689
695,539 690,068
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables Z 5 FETIR K 32 144,626 139,488
Other payables and accruals L A OB R EE
ER 33 181,852 35,322
Taxation payable FEAS I8 2,368 763
Borrowings BE 34 311,402 345,771
640,248 521,344
Net current assets REEEFE 55,291 168,724
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBER 372,959 390,624
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Borrowings B 34 - 28,832
NET ASSETS BEEFE 372,959 361,792

%

A\
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 31 December 2007 R-ZZ+F+-HA=+—H

2007 2006
4 —ETLE  —TEAF
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000

B 5E FRARY TETARE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES MR
Issued capital EEBITIRAE 35 59,460 50,480
Reserves & 37 245,143 203,866
Proposed final dividend R AR HA IS 14 11,520 9,600
Equity attributable to equity ARABEREEAEML
shareholders of the Company e 316,123 263,946
Minority interests DR RER 56,836 97,846
TOTAL EQUITY AR 372,959 361,792

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on EFeN ST N\FIUA+N\BHERK

18 April 2008. BT -

On behalf of the board of directors REREFE

Lai Yueh-hsing Chiang Jen-chin BB B8
Director Director BF EZE

The notes on pages 54 to 136 form an integral part of these financial FLAR1368 oM REKY B RE 2 —
statements. #o o
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Balance Sheet

REBEE

4
As at 31 December 2007 R—FT+HF+_A=t—H &
%
2007 2006
—BBLE  TEAF &
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BT 5 FrARY FHARY
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - R RRE 18 4 58
Interests in subsidiaries NKIEE NG o 23 124,378 132,967
124,382 133,025
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UL B B A B FR IR 23 73,070 78,774
Other receivables H W SR 255 154
Pledged bank deposits DHEMRITER 30 4,378 3,904
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBRLEFMEEER 31 10,986 15,812
88,689 98,644
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables L 3R 1,090 1,475
Borrowings B 34 - 41,115
1,090 42,590
Net current assets RBEEZE 87,599 56,054
NET ASSETS BEERE 211,981 189,079
CAPITAL AND RESERVES MR k18
Issued capital BEBITRA 35 59,460 50,480
Reserves & 37 141,001 128,999
Proposed final dividend R R EIRE B 14, 37 11,520 9,600
TOTAL EQUITY HRER 211,981 189,079

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

EZgRN _EENFOHATN\BHERE

18 April 2008. ) EE o

On behalf of the board of directors REXEFE

Lai Yueh-hsing Chiang Jen-chin FEEE B8
Director Director EBE EBE

The notes on pages 54 to 136 form an integral part of these financial ESAE136E M RAKT BHRE Z —
statements. o e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERERB X

¥
4 &
' .
¢ Forthe year ended 31 December 2007 HE—FTLFT_A=t—HIFE
&
r Statutory  Statutory Proposed
& Issued Share Special surplus public ~ Translation ~ Retained final  Minority
capital  premium reserve reserve  welfare fund reserve profits ~ dividend interests Total
BRORE  RBEE  BABE iedBEe iENEE  ERRE  REEN RRKAERE JHREER @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TLARE TnARE TnARE TrARE FrARE TFnARE TrnARE FrnAR%® FrARE FrARE
At 1 January 2006 RZEE/ E-A-A 42480 4076 67,570 16,645 4950 (118) 76,221 4,000 65,869 281,093
Purchase of additional ~ SEERMIB A ZER
interest in a subsidiary - - - - - - - - (7,160) (7,160)
Deemedandpartl ~ RARBHHE
disposals of interestin B2 A 2 %
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 3,706 3,706
Bchange diferences  AEENERELL
arising from translation X £
of foreign operations - - - - - (830) - - (1,628) (2,458)
Issuance of new shares ~ E{THTR 8,000 3710 - - - - - - 37,658 79368
Share isue expenses  RDEIHY - (200) - - - - - - - (200)
Appropriations A - - - 1,609 - - (1,609) - - -
Profit for the year ERigil - - - - - - 12,002 - (599) 11,443
Dividend paid relaing ~ —ZEREZEMRE
102005 - - - - - - - (4,000) - (4,000)
Proposed final dividend ~ #TRR AR 2 - - - - - - (9,600 9,600 - -
At31 December 2006 RN=FFAET-A=T-A 50480 37,586 67,570 18,254 4950 (1,548) 77,054 9,600 97,846 361,792
At 1 January 2007 RZET+E-f-A 50,480 37,586 67,570 18,254 4,950 (1,548) 71,054 9,600 97,846 361,792
Captal contribution ~~ EBHEAT
to a subsidiary - - - - - - - - 10,331 10,331
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ (HEHBAE - - - - - - - - (53444)  (53444)
Bichange differences  ERENEAE
realised upon disposal ~ TERESR
of subsidiaries (note )~ £ % (f319) - - - - - (139) - - - (139)
Bchange diferences  AEENERELL
arising from translation ¥ £
of foreign operations - - - - - (5,625) - - (1,006) (6,631)
Issuance of new shares ~ E4731% 13
(note 35) (F&35) 8,980 44,909 - - - - - - - 53,889
Share issue expenses  RDETEY - (150) - - - - - - - (150)
Appropriations PR - - - 121 - - (1.211) - - -
Profit for the year EmiEH - - - - - - 13,802 - 3,109 16911
Dividend paid relaing ~ —BEAEZEMRE
102006 - - - - - - - (9,600) - (9,600)
Proposed final dividend ~ #TRR AR 2 - - - - - - (11,520) 11,520 - -
At31December 2007 R-EZtE+-F=+-A 59,460 82,345 67,570 19,525 4,950 (7312) 78,065 11,520 56,836 372,959
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i)

iiii)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2007 # =

Special reserve

The amount represents the paid-in capital of the Company of 1 share of
HK$0.1 each and the special reserve of RMB83,570,000 arising from exchange
of 1 share of the Company of HK$0.1 for the entire share capital of Bamian
Investments Pte Limited pursuant to the reorganisation scheme dated 12
December 2005.

Statutory surplus reserve

The Articles of Association of Guangzhou Mayer Corporation Limited
(“Guangzhou Mayer”) requires the appropriation of 10% of its profit after
taxation, based on its statutory auditors’ accounts, each year to the statutory
surplus reserve until the balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
According to the provision of the Articles of Association of Guangzhou
Mayer, in normal circumstances, the statutory surplus reserve shall only be
used for making up losses, capitalisation into share capital and expansion of
the production and operation of Guangzhou Mayer. For the capitalisation of
statutory surplus reserve into share capital, the remaining amount of such
reserve shall not be less than 25% of the registered share capital.

Statutory public welfare fund

Pursuant to the PRC Company Law applicable to joint-stock company in
previous years, Guangzhou Mayer shall make allocation from its profit after
taxation at the rate of 5% to 10% to the statutory public welfare fund, based
on its statutory auditors’ accounts. The statutory public welfare fund can only be
utilised on capital items for employees’ collective welfare. Individual employees
only have the right to use these facilities, the titles to which will remain with
the company. The statutory public welfare fund forms part of the shareholders’
equity but is non-distributable other than in liquidation. With effective from 1
January 2006, the appropriation is not a statutory requirement in accordance
with the PRC Company Law (2006 Amendment). The appropriation is subject to
the shareholders’ approval in the annual shareholders meeting of Guangzhou
Mayer. Guangzhou Mayer has early adopted the amended Company Law and
thus no appropriation has been made during the year.

The notes on pages 54 to 136 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

= A

i) HRIRE

ZEWMEARANMBEEROIBTZEHER
A UFABRBEEMA-—TERAF+ A+
Hz EEFTEIAERRT0NE T 2 1R R #]

“EELFHASt—RILFE

Em 2 E X

BFIEREBRARDHRANESE ZEHHE
83,570,0007T A R# ©

i) EEAEE

EMEEROERAR (TFEIMNEE]) 2 BEE
ZHARTE  BFEARBEEEZHMIKRE -
HBEREEMNZ10%BEEERES  BEEZ
R AEREREMEAR50%4 L - RIBEMZEE
HESERMAZRE & REBEN EAERE
SERAERHEE  BFRRARIEREMNE
DREERZE - BEREAREBRRAR
ZHE B2 BENREREMARA25% -

i) AEQES

REBFFEARBROGARZPEARE &
MEZFARFEETEZBENRE - HEBRTIER
A Z5%E10%EEEEELRE  EERH
SRAMARABEESBREMNMENEREE -
EREERBEEBEMKE  MKRIEHTHEE
MBARFME < AE R BB RER — B
- REBUIN—BAEELEDIR - B=FF
RE-A—HE REFEIDE(ZZERX
FEAR)  DETBREEEZR - DAL
PR EMETERRBFRE LI - BINE
DORAKAKET 2 RRDERTE  WERIAL

EETOR

F54R136E LM AEAK T BHRE 2 —

5 -

F #2007 ERege il A 51



52 Mayer Holdings Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GEEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—ZEZ+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 FrRARYE FTARE
NET CASH OUTFLOW REXBZRE
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES TR 38 (4,177) (19,273)
INVESTING RE
Proceeds from disposal of a foreign HE—INEEBE
operation FE - 4,131
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEME S RFH
plant and equipment FR18 I8 1,810 2,417
Purchase of property, plant and EEWE SR
equipment (34,078) (42,198)
Increase in deposit for acquisition WY BERES
of property N (29,625) -
Decrease in bank deposits WA ERITIF R
(with original maturities more than (R=1EA LA LB E8)
3 months) 21,800 65,753
Increase in financial assets at fair value BATEIABRE L
through profit or loss S RVEEE (14,644) -
Interest received 2 W F B 1,907 1,172
Acquisition of a subsidiary g BE B B A B - (6,989)
NET CASH (OUTFLOW)/INFLOW REFHZRE
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (R RABHE (52,830) 24,286
NET CASH (OUTFLOW)/INFLOW BMEAZRE
BEFORE FINANCING (R RABHE (57,007) 5,013
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #BE—FET+F+_A=+—RALFE §

mEeE R =)

st =
L 2

B X

2007 2006
—EELHF ZETRF
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
M5 FrARY FrARE
FINANCING &
Proceeds from disposals of interests HEWBRRIERME
in subsidiaries IE 28,846 13,948
Proceeds from issue of shares BT PTIS FRIA 53,739 79,168
New borrowings raised TIBEE 96,025 -
Increase in pledged bank deposits B IRITF ZIE (44,027) (458)
Repayment of borrowings EEEER (28,823) (52,908)
Dividend paid B E (9,600) (4,000)
Interest paid ERFE (21,824) (20,661)
Capital contribution from —HLVERRZHE
a minority shareholder 10,331 -
NET CASH INFLOW FROM FINANCING REZBRERAFH 84,667 15,089
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRESEEEBEM
EQUIVALENTS 27,660 20,102
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE /N ERES B E
CHANGES (5,888) (1,549)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT EN2ERERREZHE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1H B 45,689 27,136
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FERZHERBEEE
END OF THE YEAR 1H B 67,461 45,689

The notes on pages 54 to 136 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E B RS KA

&

¥

1. General Information

1 The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 9
October 2003 as an exempt company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The address of its register office is PO Box 309GT, Ugland House,
South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman

Islands, British West Indies.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries consist of manufacturing and trading
of steel pipes, steel sheets and other products made of steel,
property investment and leasing of aircrafts for rental purposes.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi,
which is also the functional currency of the Group.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set our below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B RS MR

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

a)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

In accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for
sale and discontinued operations” issued by the HKICPA, the
results and cash flows of the operations of the Fullchamp
Group have been presented as discontinued operation. The
2006 comparative figures in the income statement and
statement of cash flow were restated to reflect the disposal
of Fullchamp Group accordingly.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
HKFRSs that are effective for accounting periods on or after
1 January 2007. The adoption of new/revised HKFRSs did
not result in substantial change to the Group’s accounting
policies. However, as a result of the adoption of HKFRS
7, Financial instruments: Disclosures and the amendment
to HKAS 1, presentation of financial statements: Capital
disclosures, there have been some additional disclosures
provided as follows:

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7 the financial
statements include expanded disclosure about the
significance of the group’s financial instruments and the
nature and extent of risks arising from those instruments,
compared with the information previously required to be
disclosed by HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Disclosure and
presentation. These disclosures are provided throughout
these financial statements, in particular in note 3.

The amendment to HKAS 1 introduces additional disclosure
requirements to provide information about the level of
capital and the Group’s and the Company’s objectives,
policies and processes for managing capital. These new
disclosures are set out in note 47.

2. TESEHE (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E B RS KA

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

a) Statement of compliance (Continued)

Both HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1 do not have
any material impact on the classification, recognition and

measurement of the amounts recognised in the financial

instruments.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7

HK (IFRIC) = Int 7

HK (IFRIC) - Int 8

HK (IFRIC) - Int 9

HK (IFRIC) - Int 10

Capital Disclosures

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Applying the Restatement Approach
under HKAS 29 Financial Reporting

in Hyperinflationary Economies

Scope of HKFRS 2

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—ZEZ+F+_-_A=+—HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B RS MR

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #BE—FET+F+_A=+—RALFE §

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

a)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The following standards and interpretations to existing
standards have been issued but not yet effective in these
financial statements.

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKFRS 8

HK (IFRIC) = Int 11
HK (IFRIC) = Int 12
HK (IFRIC) = Int 13
HK (IFRIC) - Int 14

Presentation of Financial Statements’

Borrowing Costs'

Operating Segments'

HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
Transactions?

Service Concession Arrangements?

Customer Loyalty Programmes*

HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their interaction®

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s

results of operations and financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E B RS KA
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58 Mayer Holdings Limited

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2007 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historic cost basis except for the
available-for-sale assets, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and financial liabilities, which are carried at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experiences and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B RS MR

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(9]

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company in which the Group or Company,
directly or indirectly, controls more than half of its voting
power or issued share capital or controls the composition
of its board of directors. Subsidiaries are considered to
be controlled if the Company has the power, directly or
indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies, so
as to obtain benefits from their activities.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that this is no
evidence of impairment.

Minority interests at the balance sheet date, being the
portion of the net assets of subsidiaries attributable to equity
interests that are not owned by the Company, whether
directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, are presented in
the consolidated balance sheet and consolidated statement
of changes in equity, separately from equity attributable to
the equity holders of the Company. Minority interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement as an allocation of the total
profit or loss for the year between minority interests and the
equity holders of the Company.

Where loss applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s
interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any
further losses applicable to the minority, are charged against
the Group’s interest except to the extent that the minority
has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently
reports profits, the Group’s interest is allocated all such
profits until the minority’s share of loss previously absorbed
by the Group has been recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E B RS KA

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

/i

d)

e)

60 Mayer Holdings Limited

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses, unless
the investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Goodwiill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination over the group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities. Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units and is tested annually for impairment. Any excess of
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of a business combination is recognised
immediately in the income statement. On disposal of a cash
generating unit, any attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Changes arising in the revaluation of properties held for
own use are generally dealt with in reserves. The only
exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged
to income statement to the extent that it exceeds the
amount held in the reserve in respect of that same
asset immediately prior to the revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be charged
to the income statement to the extent that a deficit on
revaluation in respect of that same asset had previously
been charged to profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

e)

2. TESEHE (&)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued) e) Wi HBRZE(E)
The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and BITEZ  ME BEMAKEZ
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the A BEMERA - BEST
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling A - R aniE A o ¥ s AR D
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they L BIE R A M IRIETE B FTfE i
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production R - LA NEE a9 H
overheads and borrowing costs. fth A EE R AN FE B AR o
Gains or losses arising on disposal or retirement of an HERERYE  BENMEREE
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as B RBENIELEMESHIEES
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the FIEEIREEZEZE THRIELE
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the HEABBAERGRARR
income statement on the date of disposal or retirement. MEEEE RSB EGMREEREA
Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the IREB & A o
revaluation reserve to retained profits.
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of Y EEBENEREBRIEE AR
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful FIpEBEE (KA 210%) LEHE
lives, after taking into account an estimated of residual MEMF A FRFHRETER
value of 10% of cost, using the straight-line method, at the & LA A MATAZEXR
following rates per annum: U

Depreciation

TER

Building and factory premises BFRKE 4% — 6%3%
Leasehold improvements HEMHEFRE 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment R HERPAEERME 625% — 50%
Plant and machinery 2SN R 10% - 33':5%
Motor vehicles _E 20%
Aircrafts ek 10%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item
is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, of any, are reviewed annually.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to income statement in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in income statement as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to income statement in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an
investment property or is held for development for sale.

Available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classified its financial assets as available-for-
sale financial assets. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation
at every reporting date. Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivatives that are either designated as such or not
classified as any of the other categories. At each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-
sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognised in equity, until the financial asset
is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. Any impairment losses on available-for-sale financial
assets are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses on
available-for-sale equity investments will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition. An impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the asset and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment losses will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

h)

Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in equity securities (other than investments
in subsidiaries, and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost
or are classified as available-for-sale securities are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment In an equity instrument below
its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

—  For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses for
equity securities are not reversed.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

h) Impairment of assets (Continued)
() Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

64 Mayer Holdings Limited

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset'’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried at amortised cost
share similar risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised directly in equity is
removed from equity and is recognised in profit
or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. TESTEEEE)

h) Impairment of assets (Continued) h) EBERME (&)
() Impairment of investments in equity securities and ()  RAEERE A M EW
other receivables (Continued) B 1E (&)
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss AR ERARF S
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities REREXAERZRE
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any BB R EIERRIEE
subsequent increase in the fair value of such B -ZEEELATE
assets is recognised directly in equity. Z AR 18 2 38 A HE

B EKER

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale HAFEHEENEE
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent FEmRBAEREE R
increase in fair value can be objectively related to EZEHBRE RIBRE
an event occurring after the impairment loss was AHEEEEESF 2R
recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such EEE L ED - HEF
circumstances are recognised in profit or loss. BEBEzEONER

FERR
Impairment losses are written off against RTBEEEESREM
the corresponding assets directly, except for FEUWIR AN 2 B 5 FE I
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade RIA R EW R 2 RE
debtors and bills receivable included within B8 (8 EK 2 A B
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is A7) AN RE B E
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, EETHEEESET
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are 8 o LB - RIEIR
recorded using an allowance account. When the BEEBIE AR E A
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the B BAREBRBR/ZNK
amount considered irrecoverable is written off 18 7 B] [B] Y M SRR B
against trade debtors and bills receivable directly ZAA Oz FIBES
and any amounts held in the allowance account 2 FE WA K W R 1B
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent FEEEEmMAERER
recoveries of amounts previously charged to BRI HEEK
the allowance account are reversed against IF o NZEREBERR
the allowance account. Other changes in the A2 & BB 1E LAT& s Uk [E]
allowance account and subsequent recoveries R BEEEEIR B &
of amounts previously written off directly are o Ry o EREIRE
recognised in profit or loss. oz R E) R BRI
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

h) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

—  pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held under an operating lease;

— investments in subsidiaries (except for those
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale)); and

goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

i) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost method
and comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

i)

k)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realizable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less
provision for impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts,
except where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses for
bad and doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are
considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise
significant influence over the party in making financial
and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group
and the party are subject to common control or common
significant influence. Related parties may be individuals
(being members of key management personnel, significant
shareholders and/or their close family members) or other
entities and include entities which are under the significant
influence of related parties of the Group where those
parties are individuals, and post-employment benefit plans
which are for the benefit of employees of the Group or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in the income statement except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised directly in equity, in
which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences arising from the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred
tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax
credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

m)

n)

o)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities.

Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee (a kind of insurance contract) is a
contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt
instrument. The Group does not recognise liabilities for
financial guarantees at inception, but perform a liability
adequacy test at each reporting date by comparing its
carrying amount of the net liability regarding the financial
guarantee with its present legal or constructive obligation
amount. If the carrying amount of the net liability is less
than its present legal or constructive obligation amount,
the entire difference is recognised in the income statement
immediately.

Revenue

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sales of goods and
services, net of rebates and discounts and after eliminated
transactions within the Group. Revenue is recognised as
follows:
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

o)

p)

Revenue (Continued)

i) Sales of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and title has passed to customer and the
customer has accepted the products and collectibility
of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

i) Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised the income statement in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.

i) Consultancy fee and commission income are recognised
when the services are rendered.

iv) Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis, taking into account the principal amounts
outstanding and at the interest rate applicable.

v)  Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are stated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit and loss, except those arising from
foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a net investment
in a foreign operation which is recognised directly in equity.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

p)

q)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of transactions. Balance sheet
items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations are translated into RMB at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised directly in a separate
component of equity. Goodwill arising on consolidation
of a foreign operation acquired is translated at the foreign
exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of the
foreign operation. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised
in equity which relate to that foreign operation is included
in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basis salaries
and are charged to the profit and loss account as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions,
which are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") and Taiwan are members of
the state-sponsored retirement schemes operated by the
government of the PRC and Taiwan.
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72 Mayer Holdings Limited

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economics
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economics
benefits is remote.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intend use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the income
statement in the year in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

t)

u)

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It also
occurs when the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the income statement,
which comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation;
and

—  the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement
to fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued
operation.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Segment reporting (Continued)

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
system, the Group has chosen business segment information
as the primary reporting format and geographical segment
information as the secondary reporting format for the
purposes of these financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to
that segment. For example, segment assets may include
inventories, trade receivables and property, plant and
equipment. Segment revenue, segment expenses, assets
and liabilities are determined before intra-group balances
and intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the
consolidation process, except to the extent that such intra-
group balances and transactions are between group entities
within a single segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on
similar terms as those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and
intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one
period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, tax balances,
corporate and financing expenses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. Derivatives are classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

Financial Risk Management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

market risk (including foreign currency risk and price risk), credit

risk, liquidity risk and interest-rate risk. The Group’s overall risk

management programme focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects

on the Group’s financial performance.

a) Market risk

i)

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases that are denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currencies giving
rise to this risk are primarily United States dollars, New
Taiwan dollars, Vietnam Dong and Hong Kong dollars.

As the estimated foreign currency exposure in respect
of committed future sales and purchases and estimated
foreign currency exposure in respect of highly probable
forecast sales and purchases is not significant, no
hedging on foreign currency risk has been carried out
during the year under review.

In respect of trade receivables and payables held in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances. All the
Group's borrowings are denominated in the functional
currency of the entity taking out the loan.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

ﬂ‘ a)

76 Mayer Holdings Limited

Market risk (Continued)

i)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

3.

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date to
currency risk arising from forecast transactions or
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—ZEZ+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

M%EREER (&)
a) THIBEK ()
D A ()

TRANHARBESETT
ZRGUCHEREEXRARE

(AIFEAEREER

Z

ok 12
BE B

¥IME)  ERAEE LA
NEANBEEAEE 2 EEE

entity to which they related. B o
2007
—EELHE
United States New Taiwan Hong Kong Vietnam
(in million) dollars dollars dollars Dong
(BEx) EYH A BT HMEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 IR 3 & E Ath
R R IR 39 51 34 2,453
Financial assets at fair value ZAFEIIABER
through profit or loss LEMEE 1 12 -
Cash and bank deposits Be RIBITER 3 2 17 =
Bank loan and overdraft RITERRIBEY (29) = (26) =
Trade and other payables & SEMIEH R E A
FERTRRR (15) (726) (1) (342)
Overall net exposure arising CHERAEEREE
from recognised assets EENEERR
and liabilities HE (1) (673) 36 2,111
2006
—EERF
United States New Taiwan  Hong Kong Vietnam
(in million) dollars dollars dollars Dong
(B&T) T e BT MEE
Trade and other receivables & 5 JEURIE 3 e E b
R R IR 35 211 31 -
Cash and bank deposits He RBITFER 4 29 19 -
Bank loan and overdraft BITERREY (35) (361) - -
Trade and other payables & 5 BRI K EAM
e FRIE (16) (132) M -
Overall net exposure arising CHREEREE
from recognised assets EEREERR
and liabilities HEE (12) (253) 49 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE-TTLHF+_A=+—HILFE &

%
3. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3. BIBEREE (&) & 5
a) Market risk (Continued) a) ™WiEER (E)
i) Foreign currency risk (Continued) ) IR S (E)
Sensitivity analysis BREDN L
The following table indicates the approximate change TRINEEREERGEE
in the Group's profit after tax and retained earnings in BEBE&EKERZINEERTH
response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign BAEMEESE  B<E
exchange rates to which the Group has significant AREB 2B % aF RRE
exposure at the balance sheet date. i F IR 2 LA B
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) profit after (decrease)  profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profit
SERE = HERBiE SN [ 3R iz
(RMB million) tH BIREE A O HFRRE
(BEETARE) (M) EFzxE (TR BFzw2
United States dollars e 5%/(5%) (1)/1 5%/(5%) (5)/5
New Taiwan dollars o= 5%/(5%) (8)/8 5%/(5%) (3)/3
Hong Kong dollars BIT 5%/(5%) 2/(2) 5%/(5%) 2/(2)
Vietnam Dong W 5%/(5%) -/- 5%/(5%) —/-
The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming BTEEURE DN R INE
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred X BHREERRDL
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to BECTWOERISERE
each of the group entities exposure to currency risk for BRARZBEHRENTE
both derivative and non-derivative financial instruments FIEPTESR T ETmEE 2
in existence at that date, and that all other variables, in EERR  mATA H e
particular interest rates, remain constant. (BERIRFIR) #451E o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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# Forthe year ended 31 December 2007 #ZE—ZETLF+-A=+—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
a) Market risk (Continued)

i)

if)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date. Results of the analysis as presented
in the above table represent an aggregation of the
effects on each of the Group entities profit after tax
measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling at
the balance sheet date for presentation purposes. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2006.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because investments held by the Group are classified
on the consolidated balance sheet as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss as disclosed in note 28.

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels
of equity indices and the value of individual securities.
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (note 28) as
at 31 December 2007. The Group’s listed investments
are listed in Hong Kong and USA, and are valued at
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3. BIBEREE (&)
a) Market risk (Continued) a) THEMRE(E)
ii)  Price risk (Continued) i) ERER (&)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to BIBRARERNEEH 2k
5% increase/decrease in the fair values of the equity EE TRINDBRAEE 2
investments with all other variables held constant NFELEF,TES%A] &
and after any impact on tax, based on their carrying K& EHhFTAaHMmE
amounts at the balance sheet date. BT WE IR EM
BERZZE -
Increase/
(decrease)
in carrying Increase/
amount of (decrease) in Increase/
equity  profit after (decrease)
investments  income tax in equity
BRAERE METEH
ZIREE %3 F &N
E# (TR 8 CRL) E, OR)
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAR® FTRARE TFTITAR®
5% increase in fair values of JEARIRE 2
the equity investments NFELEFAS% 782 782 782
5% decrease in fair values of RXZANKRE 2
the equity investments NEETES% (782) (782) (782)

The Group did not have any equity investments or
significant derivative financial instruments at 31
December 2006. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis in
respect of price risk at 31 December 2006 is presented.

B AEEYEEFRRAR
BHAERITEEMITA-
Bt - WE25 —TTREF
TZR=1+—HZEBERRR
BRRE DA
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risks are primarily attributable to time
deposits, trade and other receivables.

The Group's time deposits are deposited with banks of
high credit quality in Hong Kong and the Group has limited
exposure to any single financial institution.

For trade and other receivables, management has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. In respect of trade and
other receivables, credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 30-180
days from the date of billing.

Debtors with balances that are more than 6 months past
due are requested to settle all outstanding balances before
any further credit is granted.

None of the Group's financial assets are secured by collateral
or other credit enhancements.
Investments are normally only in liquid securities quoted on

a recognised stock exchange, except where entered into for
long term strategic purposes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE-TTLHF+_A=+—HILFE &

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

b)

(9]

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 92%
(2006: 90%) of the total receivables (being the total
classified under “Trade receivables” and “Prepayments,
deposits and other receivables”) as at 31 December 2007.
The Group has concentration of credit risk by customers as
for 56% (2006: 52%) and 34% (2006: 36%) of the total
receivables were due from the Group five largest customers
and the largest customer respectively as at 31 December
2007.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet
after deducting any impairment allowance.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to
approval by the holding company’s board. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from bankers to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—ZEZ+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3. MBEAREE (&)

¥ ]
¢) Liquidity risk (Continued) 0 REBELEE(H)
The following table details the remaining contractual TEHNEAEERANT ZIE
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and TETHBEEREERZRTA
the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities which are HENEA  TIIREFTHRAIRIR
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including R (BEUGTONREE 27|
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if ElHY EBYE HRESLEHE
floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet date) B@aMNE#HEE) RAEER
and the earliest date the Group and the Company can be RAGAIWERZNHBELRTE
required to pay. HEAmMSH -
Group rEH
2007 2006
ZREBLE ZERE
Total Morethan  More than Total Morethan  Morethan
contractual Within ~ 1yearbut ~ 2yearsbut contractual Withn ~— Tyearbut  2yearshut
Camying undiscounted ~ 1yearor  lessthan  lessthan  Morethan Camying  undiscounted 1 yearor less than kssthan — More than
amount  cashflow ondemand 2years 5years 5years amount  cashfiow  ondemand 2years 5 years 5 years
THRER -£R -F% WER SRR —Ef —Ef R
REE REREE JEEIX  ERER BEER ki3] BEE ReRgE 9EEL  EREM ELER REK
RMB00  RMB0O0  RMB0O0  RMB0O0  RMB0O0  RMB000  RWBOOO  RWBOOO  RWBOO0  RWBOO0  RWBOO0  RMB(O
TRARE TRARE TrARE TrARE TrAR® TrARE TRARE TRARY TRARE TRARE TIARE TrARE
Tiade payables  EFEMER 14626 (144,626)  (144,626) - - - 139488 (139488)  (139,488) - - -
Other payables A EMFUE
accruals REER 181852  (181.852)  (181.852) - - - 35322 (35322 (35322 - - -
Taxation payable SRR 2,368 (2368)  (2.368) - - - 763 (763) (763) - - -
Borrowings Eg 311402 (317,754)  (317,754) - - - 374603 (387,858) (365814 (6,685 (10,757) (4,602)
640,248  (646,600)  (646,600) - - - 550176 (563431)  (541,387) (6,685 (10,757) (4,602)
Company AT
2007 2006
—BELHF —EERF
Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted 1year or Carrying undiscounted 1 year or
amount cash flow on demand amount cash flow on demand
HESES: ) —£R FTRIARBEER —FR
tREE BenEE HEER IREE Renes EESK
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FTRARM TrRARE FTrRARE FTrTARE FTARE  FrARE%
Other payables  E#hfER A 1,090 (1,090) (1,090) 1,475 (1,475) (1,475)
Borrowings HE - - - 41,115 (41,130) (41,130)
1,090 (1,090) (1,090) 42,590 (42,605) (42,605)
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

d)

Interest rate risk

The Group manages its interest rate exposure based on
interest rate level and outlook as well as potential impact
on the Group’s financial position arising from volatility. The
Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy in relation to fair value and cash flow interest rate
risks. The directors monitor the Group's exposure on
ongoing basis and will consider hedging the interest rate
should the need arise.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to fixed-rate borrowings and bank deposits carrying fixed
interest rates and cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
borrowings and short-term deposits placed in banks and
financial institutions that are interest-bearing at market
interest rates. The directors consider the Group’s exposure
of the bank deposits to fair value interest rate risk is not
significant as interest bearing bank deposits are within short
maturity period.

Sensitivity analysis

The Sensitivity analyses have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates in its variable-rate borrowings
and bank deposits at the balance sheet date. The analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of borrowings and deposits
outstanding at the balance sheet date were outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is
used by the management for the assessment of the possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for
the year ended 31 December 2007 would increase/decrease
by RMB 987,000.

3. MBEAREE (&)

d)
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. 3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3. BIBEREE (&)
(e) Financial instruments by category e) LEMIEAEER
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EHReRmTANEERZEREE
instruments at the balance sheet date are as follows: wn
2007 2006
ZERLE I N3
Financial Financial
assets at fair assets at fair
value through value through
profit or loss Loans and profit or loss Loans and
(held for trading) receivables Total  (held for trading) receivables Total
RATESIA RATEFIA
BE%RZER EXR BR%ze® g3k
BE(FEE) JEEE #it  AE(H(EEER) FelzE @it
Financial assets as per consolidated A EEB BRI RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
balance sheet LEREE TRARE TrARY TRARE FRARS FrARE TLARS
Trade receivables EHRWER - 373,538 313,538 - 370,155 370,155
Prepayments, deposis and BHRE RER
other receivables Et WA - 16,683 16,683 - 341 341
Amount due from a EUBELFNA
related company - 6,473 6,473 - 2,736 2,736
Financial assets at fair value BATEAABRR
through profit or loss LEBEE 15,633 - 15,633 - - -
Pledged bank deposits EERRARER - 46,531 46,537 - 8652 8652
Bank deposits #ER - - - - 21,800 21,800
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBe5EEE - 67,461 67,461 - 45,689 45,689
15,633 510,692 526,325 - 472,453 472,453
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3. BIBEREE (&)
(e) Financial instruments by category (Continued) e) SRMIEER (E)
2007 2006
—EELHF ZETREF
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at

amortised cost  amortised cost
R ERATIR LK AT IR
ZEEEE ZoRAE

Financial liabilities as per REEEABRAAMY RMB’000 RMB’000
consolidated balance sheet ZEmBaE FRARYE FTAR®E
Trade payables B REMNER 144,626 139,488
Other payables and accruals Hin e IE R ETE S 181,852 35,322
Borrowings BE 311,402 374,603
637,880 549,413
4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key 4. BREMZETHE RMLETF
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty BEMZEFERR
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, NERAANEESAKRER BEBED
management has made various estimates and judgements BIEEATLE  ARFEALREME
(other than those involving estimates) based on past experience, BEH Z Bt R E OF RIEEB
expectations of the future and other information. The key sources GN) c Al TR B E R ER 2 £ %8
of estimation uncertainty and the critical accounting judgements BREAZE (M TEEEZETE
that can significantly affect the amounts recognised in the HoB N E R HETE SN T -

financial statements are set out below.
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or

4. Critical Accounting Judegments and
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Fair values of financial instruments

Financial instruments such as interest rate, foreign exchange
and equity derivative instruments are carried at the balance
sheet at fair value. The best evidence of fair value is quoted
prices in an active market, where quoted prices are not
available for a particular financial instrument, the Group
uses the market values determined by independent financial
institutions or internal or external valuation models to
estimate the fair value. The use of methodologies, models
and assumptions in pricing and valuing these financial
assets and liabilities is subjective and requires varying
degrees of judgement by management, which may result in
significantly different fair values and results. All significant
financial valuation models are strictly controlled and
regularly recalibrated and vetted.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment

Useful lives of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
are defined as the period over which they are expected
to be available for use by the Group. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment or similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, and it will write off or write down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives; and actual residual values may differ from
estimated residual values. Periodic review could result in a
change in depreciation lives and residue lives and therefore
depreciation expense in future periods.
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4. Critical Accounting Judegments and
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

(9]

(d)

(e)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
land use rights

Property, plant and equipment and land use rights are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The recoverable amounts are determined
based on value-in-use calculations or market valuations. In
determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present values, which
requires significant judgement relating to such items such
as level of turnover and amount of operating costs. No
impairment was provided during the year.

Impairment of receivables

The Group’s management determines impairment of
receivables on a regular basis. This estimate is based on
the credit history of its customers and current market
conditions. Management reassesses the impairment of
receivables at the balance sheet date.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
selling and distribution costs. These estimates are based on
the current market condition and the historical experience
of selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. Management will reassess the
estimations at the balance sheet date.

4. ARz A B R MG T
BEMZETERIR (&)

(9]

(d)

(e)
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Segment Reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged
in providing products or services that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business segments.
A geographical segment is engaged in providing products and
services within a particular economic environment that are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
segments operating in other economic environments.

Segment information

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the
Group has determined that business segments be presented as
the primary reporting format and geographical as the secondary
reporting format.

a) Business segments

The Group comprises the following main business segments:

Steel — the manufacture and trade of steel
pipes, steel sheets and other products
made of steel.

Aluminum — the design, develop, manufacture and
trade of aluminum forged and forged-
spun wheels for automobiles.
(discontinued on 1 July 2007)

Property — the investment and holding of
Investment property to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes.

Others — the general trading metal and metal
products and leasing of aircrafts for
rental purposes.

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses. Segment
assets consist primarily of land use rights, property, plant
and equipment, inventories, receivables and operating cash.
Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities and exclude
items such as income tax. Capital expenditure comprises
additions to inventories and property, plant and equipment.
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5. Segment Reporting (Continued) 5. D EPEmE (&) p
a) Business segments (Continued) a) ¥EBoIp(E)

2007
3-8 o3

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations

BREERY BRIEXK

Property
Steel investment Others  Sub-total Aluminum Total
o NERE Hit it i3 st
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
FTRARYE FTRAR® TRARE FTrRAR® TRARE FTrARE

Revenue WA

~ External sales —HINEE 1,200,977 - 52,253 1,253,230 61,478 1,314,708

- Inter-segment sales - DHFEHEE - - - - - -

1,200,977 - 52,253 1,253,230 61,478 1,314,708

Segment profit pan bl 26,527 74 6,372 32,973 4,244 37,217
Gain on disposal HERBAR

in subsidiaries FElE - 8,715 8,715
Unallocated operating income KD B4R &I A I

and expenses (53 (5,357) - (5,357)
Operating profit Lyl 27,616 12,959 40,575
Finance costs REKR (19,233) (2592  (21,825)
Taxation HA (3,106) 1,267 (1,839)
Profit for the year KEFRT 5277 11,634 16,911
Attributable to: JE1h -
Minority interests DERRER 1,022 2,087 3,109
Equity holders of the Company A7 AR ERH A 4,255 9,547 13,802
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> 5. Segment Reporting (Continued) 5. D EPEmE (&)
// a) Business segments (Continued) a) EEoI(E)
i 2007
—EEBLE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BFEREER DRILER
Property
Steel investment Others  Sub-total Aluminum Total
B NERE Hith Nt i et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
FrARY FTRARY® FTRARY FTrAR¥E TRAR® FTRARW
Segment assets DHEE 733975 199,590 16,136 949,701 - 949,701
Unallocated assets KOREE 63,506 - 63,506
Total assets BEE 1,013,207 - 1,013,207
Segment liabilities PHEE 472,238 162,769 4392 639,399 - 639399
Unallocated liabilities AOBEE 849 = 849
Total liabilities BESE 640,248 - 640,248
Capital expenditure BAMY 22,980 - 11,098 34,078 - 34,078
Depreciation and amortisation 17 2 J # 34 10,789 - 2,052 12,841 6,990 19,831
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Business segments (Continued)

5. 7k & ()
a) ¥ 5 ()

2006
ZEERE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
SELE R BERIEER
Property
Steel  investment Others  Sub-total  Aluminum Total
W WERE Hith Nt i a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TIARE FRARE TIARE TRARE TIARE TRARE
Revenue WA
- External sales —HINEE 936,499 - 8,123 944622 101,860 1,046,482
- Inter-segment sales - HFEHEE - - - - - -
936,499 - 8,123 944,622 101,860 1,046,482
Segment profit/(loss) AEEF/ (B8) 31,390 - 2790 31,111 (2,513) 28598
Gain on disposal/deemed HE/BAILE
disposal of interests in WERARER
subsidiaries Friglas - 4,673 4,673
Unallocated operating income KA TR E WA K
and expenses % 928 - 928
Operating profit A=yl 32,039 2,160 34,199
Finance costs REMA (15,967) (4,694 (20,661)
Taxation T (2,426) 331 (2,095)
Profit/(loss) for the year TEER/ (B8) 13,646 (2,203) 11,443
Attributable to: JEfh :
Minority interests LERR RS 3,153 (3,752) (599)
Equity holders of the Company A2 AR ER A A 10,493 1,549 12,042
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5. Segment Reporting (Continued)

a) Business segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—ZEZ+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

5. 7k & ()
a) ¥ 5 ()

2006
—EERE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
SEMEER BARIFEHK
Property

Steel  investment Others Sub-total  Aluminum Total
o MERE Hit INEF i @zt
RMB'O0O0  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
TTARE FETARE FTRARE FrARE FTAR®E FIARE
Segment assets PHEE 629,858 - 4784 634,642 239,358 874,000
Unallocated assets AOREE 37,968 - 37,968
Total assets BEE 672,610 239358 911,968
Segment liabilities PHEE 386,596 - 2878 389474 120978 510,452
Unallocated liabilities AOEEE 39,724 - 39,724
Total liabilities BEEE 429,198 120,978 550,176
Capital expenditure BRRX 9,521 - - 9,521 32,674 42,195
Unallocated amounts AoEEE 3 - 3
9,524 32,674 42,198
Depreciation and amortisation 17 & J # 34 11,843 - 1,455 13,298 13,095 26,393
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5. Segment Reporting (Continued) 5. D EPEmE (&)
b) Geographical segments b) tEZDER
Segment revenue from external customers by geographical IR EI D INRE L 202U
area based on the geographical location of its customers AME  AREEE P H90%:k
is 90% or more in the PRC and therefore no separate LA BRI B S b (& - B it 0 48
analysis for geographical segment information is presented i@ D LER 2 Y EF L DM o
accordingly.
The geographical location of the total carrying amount of I EEDSRFEARNERS 2D
segment assets and capital expenditure incurred during the EBEE M B AF T AR EEM
year under business segment “Steel” are in the PRC and T HuIBA BB R R -
Vietnam.
The geographical location of the total carrying amount of shlea ] M ERE | EED IR
segment assets and capital expenditure incurred during the FREE Z’“*Bé%&ézliﬁﬂi
year under business segment “Aluminum” and “Property E’],ﬁ@ BEEEmS  EBEVEE
investment” are in the Taiwan. REE o
The geographical location of the total carrying amount of FITEM ] EBDBRFASESFZ
segment assets and capital expenditure incurred during the NHEERERAAZNBIREEE
year under business segment “Others” are in the PRC, Hong mE HtBEUuEBERTEH &
Kong and other countries. B REAMEK -
Segment assets Capital expenditure
DEWMEE BEXRX
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELHF —ZEERF —EEtHF —EERF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

FTRAR® TrRARE FTrAR® TrIARE

Hong Kong aBE 46,662 19,929 = 3
Mainland China A B K [ 714,679 634,642 11,183 9,521
Taiwan ae 231,285 256,084 11,098 32,674
Vietnam isdeal 20,581 - 11,797 -
Other countries HEMBER - 1,313 = -

1,013,207 911,968 34,078 42,198
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6. Turnover and Other Revenue - Continuing 6.

Operations

Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable for

sale of goods by the Group to outside customers.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and other revenue from

continuing operations is as follows:

BRER ARG - HEL
—E L
EEERIEEANAESHEER
B A M2 BB R A -

AEERBERERT 2 EXBRAM

Lsaianiin U

2007 2006
—EELF ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FRARY FTAREE
(restated)
(&%)
Turnover =
Sale of goods SHEEM 1,253,230 944,622
Other revenue Hth 2=
Interest income B WA 1,837 1,052
Rental income HaUWA 7,195 4,966
Fair value gain on financial assets BAFEIIAERRZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREECAFEKE 989 -
Gain on disposal of financial assets HESmMEE 2 W 783 -
Consultancy fee &R 469 144
Dividend income iz 8 A 67 -
11,340 6,162
1,264,570 950,784
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4

T
7. Other Income - Continuing Operations 7. HtA - SEBEREEK & 5
2007 2006 \\
—ETtHF ZEEX |
RMB’000 RMB'000
FRARYE FTARE
(restated)
(&%)
Scrap sales BRI SHE 6,429 5,111
Exchange gains, net E X Uk #5558 3,286 1,297
Sundry income HIBWA 2,030 317
11,745 6,725
8. Operating Profit - Continuing Operations 8. RELRA-FERKEXY
Operating profit from continuing operations has been arrived at 4B AR BT 7 AR ESHE T B HIBR B
after charging: £I7
2007 2006
—ETLE ZETEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
FRrARY FLTARE
(restated)
(E51)
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN BN € 536 600
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses  FERR AR X 2 F E KA 1,197,423 883,072
Depreciation e 12,619 13,076
Amortisation of operating lease prepayment 48 & F8 498 (< Zk 18 7 # $4 222 222
Operating leases in respect of A -
— rented premises —HEME 3,728 1,390
— motor vehicles —A"E - 541
Impairment of trade receivables 5 REBRFURE 1,558 -
Contribution to defined contribution TR FURIRET &) 2 3K
retirement schemes 1,739 2,103
Staff costs (including directors’ BERA(BREESHE)
remuneration) 18,256 13,500
Impairment loss recognised on AHEEeREE
available-for-sale financial assets 2 ERRBEEE 720 -
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Gain on Disposal of Subsidiaries

Fullchamp Technologies Co Ltd (“Fullchamp”), a non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company was previously regarded as a
subsidiary because the Company could control the majority of
the voting rights of its board of directors and general meetings,
taking into account of the written undertaking from Mayer Steel
Pipe Corporation (“Taiwan Mayer”) which holds 22.88% of the
issued capital of Fullchamp.

During the year, the Group disposed all its remaining 28.51%
equity interests in Fullchamp to Taiwan Mayer for a consideration
of NT$149,500,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB34.7
million) in cash (the “Disposal”). On the completion date, the
Group recognized a total gain arising from the Disposal of
RMB8,715,000. The gain has been credited to the consolidated
income statement for the current year.

Details of the net assets disposed of and the gain on the Disposal

HEMB QA MEWRE
EREBHEBROARAR (TEK]
ERARAIZIEEMEBE QR AE
WER—WEBAB - F &Kk
EmkHARRA ([BEXE]) (B
FEBREEITRAZ222.88%) fFiH
ZEBMEH  ARAAZHEXNES
GRBERAEG L2 KEHFRRE -

FR O AEEBERAETKRZHEE
2851 %W AR EHE T EED
18 &R 4£149,500,0007T ¥7 & # (48
= 7 4934,700,000T A R ([H &
FH])  -REKBH KREBER
EEHES 7 #Uk258,715,0007T AR
B o RS ERAFEE AL A WS
% o

FAThEZEEFEEERHEFTHLZ

of Fullchamp are as follows: WaErFEmT

2007

—EELF

RMB’000

FTRARY

Property, plant and equipment W - WE R 109,832
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHE S 5,763
Inventories 55 75,252
Trade and bill receivable H 5 e W AR R K e R B 27,474
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e - AR FUE & E Ab e IE 2,990
Pledged deposits e TR 6,142
Trade payables Z S REMNRR (4,925)
Deposit received Bl e (7,526)
Accrual and other payables s E R MK E A B FRIE (9,850)
Bank borrowings R171EE (130,394)
Net tangible assets value of subsidiary MEBARCEREETFE 74,758
% of ownership WEEZAES L 28.51%
Net tangible assets value of subsidiary owned BEWBRRIcBEREETE 21,314
Goodwill & 4,719
Sales proceeds HEERIE (34,609)
Realisation of exchange reserve BIRE NG (139)
Gain on disposal of Fullchamp HEEK WS (8,715)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FritE B RIS EEER (5.763)
Cash received from Taiwan Mayer HaBERWIM s RE 34,609
Net cash inflow from disposal HEZRESRAFH 28,846
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

10. Finance Costs — Continuing Operations 10. ME R A - FELEEK
2007 2006
—®RLE  —TTAE t
RMB’000 RMB'000
FRARY FTARY
(restated)
(E31))
Interest on bank and other borrowings ARAFAZEER
wholly repayable within SELEEB 2
five years from continuing operations RITREMEE 2 E 19,233 15,967
11. Taxation — Continuing Operations M. BE-FEKSEEK
The charge comprises: MBS H B
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FTRARY TRTARE
(restated)
(&%)
Income tax PS5t
Current year REFE 3,003 2,426
Under provision in prior years BEFERENR 76 -
Deferred taxation (note 24) FERERIE (i 5E24) 27 -
3,106 2,426
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&

11. Taxation — Continuing Operations

(Continued)

Pursuant to the tax authorities in the PRC, Guangzhou Mayer
Corporation Limited (“Guangzhou Mayer”) is entitled to a
preferential rate on PRC enterprise income tax of 10% for 2006
and 2007. The charge of PRC enterprise income tax for the
year has been provided for after taking these tax incentives into
account.

Income tax of the other companies comprising the Group is
calculated at tax rates applicable to the jurisdictions in which they
are incorporated/registered.

# Forthe year ended 31 December 2007 #ZE—ZETLF+-A=+—HIFE

11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E B RS KA

BIE - FEKCEXER (&)

RIER BB B2 8 E P%J‘H%EE
BOBRAG ([EMERDR_Z
/\E&_77t¢ﬁ$%?ﬁ10°/oz¢
BPEMEHEETE - KFE2H
B EPEH T HEERE - et &
MRS EEIELTE -

AREB TR AR R 2 FE B IR
S AT, 3R A Bl E 2 A B
GRS

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before NG JE 2 T8 ST A] B B A A e )
taxation as follows: R -
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
FRARY FTARE
Profit before taxation from S
continuing operations BR 5 A% A 8,383 16,072
Tax at income tax at statutory tax rate REEMEFEZEH 1,369 3,014
Tax effect of tax exemption MIER R HB T2 - -
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses TAMBRZ 2 HGETE 571 1,057
Tax effect on non-taxable income BARBTRAZRBEZE (1,650) (2,555)
Tax loss not recognised AR ERZ BIEE 1B 2,948 1,274
Under-provision in respect of NAFEE
prior years BESR 76 -
Deferred taxation JRAERIE 27 -
Other temporary differences HEmEEsR (235) (364)
3,106 2,426

The National People’s Congress of the PRC approved the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (the “New Tax Law") on
16 march 2007. With effective from 1 January 2008, the tax rate
applicable to the enterprises established in the PRC will be unified
at 25% with certain grandfather provisions and preferential
provisions. The change in tax rate does not have any impact on
the financial statements, as the New Tax Law was neither enacted
nor substantially enacted by 31 December 2007.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GAMBREKE |

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

12. Discontinued Operations 12. B ILET
(a) The Group ceased the operations of the Aluminum business (@ RZZEZLFtLtA—HB A£H
segment of the design, develop, manufacturing and trade WL iRl R o 3 — Bk
of aluminum forged and forged-spun wheels and other FPoAE RENEBRRERS
spare parts for automobiles on 1 July 2007. An analysis of cHE MR EEREEMTES \

the results of the discontinued operations is as follows: o BRRIEEB 2 EESTWT

2007 2006

ZEZtHF —TEERF

RMB'000 RMB’'000

TRAR® TEARY

Turnover EERE 61,478 101,860
Cost of sales HEKK (44,420) (88,061)
Other revenue H o 1,620 3,697
Operating expenses RERY (13,152) (14,489)
Other operating expenses Hig e (1,282) (5,520)
Finance costs AR (2,592) (4,694)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB ALER, (B1E) 1,652 (7,207)
Taxation BiIE 1,267 331
Operating profit/(loss) from BRIEEBK 2

discontinued operations mERMN,/ (BE) 2,919 (6,876)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 9) HEKB 2 A AE W (EE9) 8,715 -
Gain on deemed and partial disposals %E?%&‘M HE W% Al

of interests in subsidiaries Frisiiss - 4,673
Profit/(loss) for the year BERILEBCFR

from discontinued operations wH (E518) 11,634 (2,203)
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E B RS KA

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—ZEZ+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

12. Discontinued Operations (Continued)

(b)

100 Mayer Holdings Limited

An analysis of the expenses from discontinued operations is
as follows:

12. B AR IE¥7E ()

(b) BRIEEXBZAXZXOMFAOT

2007 2006

—EELF ZEENRE

RMB'000 RMB’000

FTRARY FTrARE

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses ~ #&:2 A5 & 2 7 SR A 44,420 88,061

Depreciation e 6,990 13,095

Impairment of inventories FERE - 519
Contribution to defined contribution ERMFRRE B 2

retirement schemes 361 183

Staff costs (including directors remuneration) & TN (B HEE SH#<) 5,752 6,131

The net cash flows attributable to the discontinued

(0 ERLEXBEREZRERE

operations are as follows: LU
2007 2006
) o -3 “EEARE
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTRARY FTTARE
Net cash outflows from operating activities 4% ¥ 7% 2 18 47 H %48 (39,761) (17,452)
Net cash outflows from investing activities 1% & /& 8) 2 B &7 ) F58 (2,569) (28,820)
Net cash inflows from financing activities B4 & /58 2 B & AF 5 45,735 44,548
Net increase/(decrease) in bank balances ~ #R1T#EERRIRE 280,
and cash CRiD) %58 3,405 (1,724)
Net balances and cash at the beginning R ERY),FH 2 & KIS
of the period/year R 2,358 4,082
Bank balances and cash at the end of ik FRZBITESRR
the period/year Re 5,763 2,358
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

13. Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Company
The net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
includes a loss of approximately RMB9,845,000 (2006: loss
of RMB9,032,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2007.

GARBEERE

A\

1B. A QA EBEFEAEBMLRF

RArERFEABGRINFERE
ERARAIHEE_ZEZLFE+_A
—T+—BEFEZYBHRRAERE
&5 18 499,845,000t A REE (ZZZ X
4 : [§5189,032,0007t A REE) -

14. Dividends 14. R E
2007 2006
—gBLE —TEX
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FARY
Proposed final dividend of RMB 2 cents Bk R EFR2D AR
per share (2006: RMB 2 cents) (ZZEERF 20 ARE) 11,520 9,600
15. Earnings per Share 15. 8R&R

Basic and diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the

BRERREFER NI AR R R
FAEABRGERNBARFEDHTE
B I BETE -

year.
2007 2006
—ETtHF ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
FRAR® FTARKE
Weighted average number of BT MR 2 M
ordinary shares in issue FHE 513,402,740 402,630,137
Profit attributable to the equity ZN/NEIZNSFEPN
holders of the Company FEAE @ A -
— Continuing operations - B EER 4,255 10,493
— Discontinued operations - BRRIEE 9,547 1,549
Total profit from operations REALE 2 w4 EE 13,802 12,042

Basic earning per share (RMB): BRERBR(ARE) :

— Continuing operations - B EER
— Discontinued operations - BRRIEE

0.83 cents o
1.86 cents &

2.61 cents &
0.38 cents %

Total basic earnings per share (RMB) RELBTBE(ARE)

2.69 cents o

2.99 cents 7

There were no potential dilutive shares in existence for the year

+ER-EERE

ended 31 December 2007 and 2006, and accordingly, no diluted
earnings per share amount has been presented.

ToAZt-BUFEYEBEEE
Btn - BRI SRESERT
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E B RS KA

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—ZEZ+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

16. Directors’ Emoluments 16. EEM <
The emolument of each director for the year ended 31 December SEERNHE_ZEET+F+ A
2007 is set out below: =t+—RIEFEZHMEHEIAT
Name of directors Fees Salary Bonus Total
EEnR we E2 TBAL &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

FTRAR® TRAR® TRARY TTARY

Executive Directors BITES

Lai Yueh-hsing FEEH - 175 - 175
Lo Haw e - 342 - 342
Lin Meng-chang MRE - 421 - 421
Lu Wen-yi BN - 175 - 175
Chiang Jen-chin B - 324 - 324
Cheng Dar-terng B3 e - 175 - 175

Non-executive Directors JEHITEE

Hsiao Ming-chih BmEE - 134 - 134

Huang Chun-fa E5H% - 97 - 97

Independent BIYFETES

non-executive Directors

Lin Sheng-bin PREE M, 29 - - 29

Huang Jui-hsiang =k 29 - - 29

Alvin Chu R 222 - - 222
280 1,843 - 2,123
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AR RS KA

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

16. EEM < (48)
EEENBE_SEAE+ A

16. Directors’ Emoluments (Continued)

The emolument of each director for the year ended 31 December

2006 is set out below:

=t HUEFEZMEEINWAT

Name of directors Fees Salary Bonus Total
EEME ik e bizan BEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FTLTAR® TLIAR® FTLIAR® FLARE
Executive Directors HTES
Lai Yueh-hsing BEH - 184 - 184
Lo Haw BE - 359 - 359
Shen Heng-chiang L
(resigned on 7 Aug 06) (RZEERENALAEML) - 223 - 223
Wu Kuo-lung REE
(resigned on 7 Aug 06) (R-ZEXFENALHED) - 9 - R
Lin Meng-chang MHE - 221 - 221
Lu Wen-yi BXE - 92 - 92
Chiang Jen-chin BT - 253 - 253
Cheng Dar-terng HizfE - 184 - 184
Non-executive Directors ~ FHTES
Hsiao Ming-chih HEE - 141 - 141
Huang Chun-fa "R - 102 - 102
Independent BYFYTES
non-executive Directors
Lin Sheng-bin MEET, 31 - - 31
Huang Jui-hsiang Eln 31 - - 31
Alvin Chu g 234 - - 234
296 1,851 - 2,147
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E B RS KA

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—ZEZ+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

16. Directors’ Emoluments (Continued) 16. EEM £ (&)

4 During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to FA - AEEWEREMES LM
any directors or any five highest paid individuals (note 17) as an & &Em#H AT (FEE17) B & A
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation TEAMBs M INBEAREB R EE) sk
for loss of office. No director has waived any emoluments during EEBBEE EENFRNBEERE
the year. ERME -

The emoluments of the directors were within the following BEEZHMENTUTEE :
bands:
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEEREF
Number of Number of
Directors Directors
EEAH EE=YN
Nil to RMB925,000 (HK$1,000,000) £ %925,0007T A R #E
(1,000,0007% 7T) 1" 13
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AR RS KA

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

17. Key Management Personnel Remuneration 17. EBE B H N
During the year, the five highest paid individuals in the Group FRN AEEBLEHZEFALTEE=
included three (2006: two) directors, details of those emolument Z(ZEERF -WMRB)EF HHM
are set out in note 16 above. The emoluments of the remaining HBEHN EXKFEI6 - B TMmE (=
two (2006 three) individuals for the year ended 31 December EERFZH)ALTREBEE-_ZEZT '
2007 were as follows: +tHF T+ A=+—HIEFEZHHN
T

2007 2006

—EBLF ZEERF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

FRARY TTAR®

Salaries and other benefits e MEMEH 735 959
The remuneration of the individuals was within the following ZEALTZBMEN TFIATEE
band:
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EBEAE BEE AH
Nil to RMB975,000 (HK$1,000,000) £ 2975,0007T AR
(1,000,0007%7T) 2 3
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E B RS KA

§
4 &
e
# For the year ended 31 December 2007 HZE—TZ+F+-_A=+—HILFE
|, , 18.Property, Plant and Equipment 18. M3 - BB RRE
Group rE
Furniture,
Building fixtures
Freehold  andfactory ~ Construction Leasehold  and office Plant and Motor
land premises inprogress improvements  equipment  machinery vehicles Aircrafts Total
B 2ER
XAEELH BTREE HRIE HEMEEE  BOERE  BERES RE it it
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TEARE  FrARE  THARE  TrARE  TRARE  TrARE  TRARYE  FrAR%®  TrARE
Cost A
At 1 January 2006 RZE5 E-F-H 14932 52,050 3,027 13,043 5434 148,082 1,587 15,201 253,356
Additions HE - - 7312 8,054 192 26,253 387 - 42198
Transfers 2 - - (8,280) - 103 8,176 1 . -
Disposals il - - - (693) (88) (100) (326) - (1,207)
Bichange adjustments ~ EX B2 (394) (288) - (406) (34) (2,241) (12 (494) (3,869)
At31December 2006  R-FETAE
T-A=1-H 14,538 51,762 2,059 19,998 5,607 180,170 1,637 14,707 290,478
Additions HE - - 17,035 501 1541 3731 m 11,098 34,078
Transfers gz - - (7,79) - - 7,798 - - -
Disposals e - - - - ® (10,426) - - (10434)
Disposal of subsiciaries  HEMEAF (14,538) (9,555) () (17,448) (758) (85,469) (201) - (128,192)
Exchange adjustments B % - 160 - 709 61 2531 16 (967) 2510
At31December 2007  H-FTLE
T-F=+-H - 42,367 11,073 3,760 6,443 98,335 1,624 24,838 188,440
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2006 RZEEAE-A-H - 12,380 - 858 1,197 41,598 776 787 58,19
Depreciation for FEBLEHIAE
continuing operations - 1910 - 327 694 8,572 210 1,363 13,076
Written-back &m - - - ) (79) (44) (240) - 436)
Depreciation for BRIEEBIE - 653 - 2,588 346 9434 74 - 13,095
discontinued
operations
Exchange adjustments B 5% - (50) - (204) (26) (907) (10) (52) (1,209)
At31December 2006  RZETAE
T-A=t-H - 14,893 - 3492 2,736 58,653 810 2,098 82,682
Depreciation for B - 1,905 - 784 695 7,086 153 1,99 12,619
continuing operations
Written back EE - - - - (0] (8.857) - - (8,864)
Depreciation for BRIEEBIE - 30 - 1442 136 5,063 29 - 6,990
discontinued operations
Disposal of subsiciaries  HEHEAR) - (872) - (3,559) (447) (13,387) (95) - (18,360)
Eichange adjustments (B3 % - (160) - (130) (78) (2,535) (15) (219) 3130
At31December 2007  RZETLE
T-A=1-H - 16,086 - 1429 3,035 46,023 882 3875 71330
Net book value REFE
At31December 2007 R-ETLE
T-A=1-H - 26,281 1,073 2,331 3,408 52,312 m 20,963 17,110
At31 December 2006 RZETAE
T-F=t+-H 14,538 36,869 2,059 16,506 2811 121517 827 12,609 207,79
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A B RS MR

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 18. WD -~ MRS R 1E ()

The freehold land is situated in Taiwan. KAEREL ARG E -

The building and factory premises are situated in the People’s BFRBEHL NP EARLME K

Republic of China and Taiwan and are held under medium term AE WKPHHENES -

lease.

The aircrafts are leased to a related company established under MRETHETF FXBEFPERB AR

the laws of the Republic of China, in which Mr. Huang Chun- K 2BEERNR (EFELENRZA

fa has beneficial interest. During the year, rental income and REEESER) - TR BEWKRER

consultancy fee income amounting to RMB7,195,000 (2006: ZEEARZHSWANERE WA

RMB4,966,000) and RMB469,000 (2006: RMB144,000) 2 Bl A7,195,000c A REE (ZZTZ X

respectively were received and receivable from this related F 1 4,966,0007T A R ¥) &469,0007T

company. ARB(ZZZNF 1 144,000 AR
#) o

At 31 December 2007, the Group’s building, plant and RN-ZZTE+F+_A=+—H K&

equipment with carrying value of RMB66,980,000 (2006: =R H (B 466,980,000 T A REE (=&

RMB139,153,000) were pledged to certain banks for banking TR 1 139,153,000t ARK) 22

facilities granted to the Group (note 34). FOERNEHBORAEEER 2R

TTEEMER T ETRT (HE34) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E B RS KA

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—ZEZ+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

18. 135 ~ R RE (&)

Company AAF]
Leasehold Furniture
improvements and fixtures Total
HEWEEE BHRREE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FTARE TFrTAR¥E FTrTARE
Cost %N
At 1 January 2006 RZTEZERF—H—H 180 120 300
Additions nE - 3 3
Exchange adjustments ME H, 58 B (1 7) (18)
At 31 December 2006 RZEZERF+_A=1T—8H
and 1 January 2007 kZFEZT+F—H—H 169 116 285
Additions = - 3 3
Exchange adjustments (R (11) (7) (18)
158 112 270
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2006 RZTEZERF—H—H 85 56 141
Provided for the year FNEHE 56 38 94
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 58 B (5) 3) (8)
At 31 December 2006 RZEZERF+_A=1T—8
and 1 January 2007 rZFEZT+F—H—H 136 91 227
Provided for the year FNRE 32 24 56
Exchange adjustments R (10) (7) (17)
158 108 266
Net book value R ERE
At 31 December 2007 R-ZZBETLtF+_A=1+—H - 4 4
At 31 December 2006 RZZBETEXRF+_A=+—H 33 25 58
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A B RS MR

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

19. Leasehold Land and Land Use Rights for 19. REKEHESEEERZ
Own Use under Operating Lease FHE L ih % 1 ih 55 I 4
The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights ANEBERTHE + b o + (s AR 2 4
represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net book =HEEMAEEROMNR - LIREFE
values are analysed as follows: DT X
The Group
rEH
2007 2006
—EELF ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB'000

FRARY TETARE

Outside Hong Kong, held on: REBUIMNERFFE -

Leases of between 10 to 50 years FHER10E50%F 8,416 8,638
Bank borrowings are secured on leasehold land for the carrying R1TE B AR {E8,416,0007T A R ¥
amount of RMB8,416,000 (2006: RMB8,638,000) (note 34). (ZZZNF : 8,638,000t ARY) 2

THE T EE A (M15E34) -
2007 2006
—EZTLHF ZEERF
RMB’000 RMB'000
FrARY FTAREE
At 1 January Ww—H—H 8,638 8,860
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease TET A A R 5

payment (222) (222)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 8,416 8,638
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E B RS KA

¥
¢ Forthe year ended 31 December 2007 BE—ZZLF+_A=1+—HIFE
&
> 20. Deposit for Acquisition of Property 20. WE&%%ZE%
At balance sheet date, the Group has paid deposit in the amount REEH  AEBEFKE —BLR
of RMB192,142,000 to the vendor in regarding to the acquisition & 7 YR Eﬁi1ﬂgﬁ1 92,142,000
¥ | of a property situated in Taiwan for a total consideration of TARM  #1{E/880,000,0007T
NT$880,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB197,296,000). e & (8 R#H197,296,000T A R
The transaction was subsequently completed on 5 February 2008 ) ZRXBEBER _ZEENFZ
and the property is accounted for as investment property of the AR B  ZWEAARIIERSE
Group. EREmME -
21. Available-For-Sale Financial Assets 2. At EEREE
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FRARY FTAREE
Club debentures gES
Unquoted, at cost mIRE - BN 1,294 1,294
Less: Impairment loss recognised B ERERREER (1,294) (574)
- 720
The cost of club debentures has been reduced to its recoverable CHESZRNAEFAREZEETRE S
amount which is nil as management considers the recovery of T  RAATERERAD I
this amount is remote. SREIMEEN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #BE—FET+F+_A=+—RALFE §

A B RS MR

22. Goodwill 22. 78
The Group
rEH
2007 2006
—EELF ZETREF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FTRARY FTARE
At 1 January Kn—H—H 4,719 12,708
Deemed and partial disposals of interests BRRBHLEMBAT
in subsidiaries s = (3,586)
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries (note 9) &I E A AR (4,719) (4,403)
At 31 December Rt+t-A=+—H = 4,719

Impairment tests for goodwill:

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
(CGUs) identified according to country of operation and business
segment.

The goodwill at 31 December 2006 and 1 January 2007, was
entirely related to the business segment of aluminum wheels
and automobile spare parts which is located in Taiwan. Upon the
completion of the disposals of interests in subsidiaries (note 9),
the respective goodwill was disposed. The discount rate used was
6.1% in 2006 which is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to
the business of Fullchamp.

In the prior year, no impairment loss had been recognised on
the goodwill in respect of the aluminum wheels and car spare
parts as the recoverable amount of this CGU from the disposal
of interests in subsidiaries (note 9) exceeded its carrying value on
the date of disposal.

7 (R A ¢

BEDOIREERREMERREER
DES A NEEER e EE BN

R-ZEERFT-_A=+—BR-%
THF-A-BZRE2HAEURE
EriaRmE LTETHZRE D
BB -RNEENEB QA EE (i)
XK ERBEIEHE-ZFT
NEMZEIREREN% » W ARET
IR N [ R B2 SR 75 A B 2 15 TE R
B o

REF  HRRHERERR#RE (M
H9) wmRIL RS EL BN 2 A S
BEODENEERMZIREE  ®
Ep iR mE LTETHEB oML
B R ERR -

4
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E B RS KA

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—ZEZ+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

23. Interests in Subsidiaries

23. RMIE ARl 2R
2007 2006
—ETEHF —TERF
RMB’000 RMB’000

FRAR® FTITARE

Unlisted shares, at cost FE LT - AR 124,378 132,967
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U BT B8 A B 5108 75,454 80,865
Less: provision for impairment losses W R ETE 2 B (2,384) (2,091)
73,070 78,774
The balances with the subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free HtE ARz AEER - 28K
and repayable on demand. ﬁfﬁiﬂ’ﬁﬁ
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2007 RIEZE+F+_A=+—HZAR
are as follows: AIMTE R RIFFBOT
Place of incorporation/  Issued and fully Percentage of
Company operation paid share capital interest held Principal activities
AH TR EE DETRBERAK BERERZEA FEER
Direct Indirect
=§; GiE
Bamian Investments Pte Ltd. Singapore Us$10,100,875 100% - Investment holding
BPIREBRAA il 10,100,875% 7T REER
Guangzhou Mayer Corp., Ltd. PRC RMB200,000,000 - 81.40%  Manufacture and trading of
("Guangzhou Mayer") s 200,000,000 A R # steel pipes, steel sheets
BMETRHBERAF and other products
([EMZEER]) made of steel
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BEZE—TZLF+-_A=+—HILFE &

23. Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued)

&

T
23. R B Az ()

Place of incorporation/  Issued and fully Percentage of
Company operation paid share capital interest held Principal activities
AL SR EERE  EROTRMERE FEREAESL TEER
Direct Indirect
E# EiE:3
Vietnam Mayer Co., Ltd.** Vietnam US$3,000,000 - 50%  Manufacture and trading of
i 3,000,000 7T steel pipes, steel sheets
and other products
made of steel
REREEHE -HAR
H o 35 m
ROC Advance Ltd. BVI US$1 100% - Leasing of aircrafts and
BEARAR RBRAES Eo provision of consultancy
service
TS SR E R PR
Sunbeam Group Ltd. BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
HAEERRAA RERUHEE E RERK
Mei Kong Shih Ye Ltd.* The Republic of China NT$163,905,250 - 100%  Property Investment
ERBEXERAA FERE 163,905,250 ¥ & % holdings
NERERR
Top Force International Ltd."# BVI US$1 100% - Investment holdings
BHERERAE RBRAES Eo RERK
Glory World Development Ltd.## BVI Us$1 100% - General trading
RBRLES s —RES
Vansen International Ltd. BVI US$1 100% - General trading
BHERERAR RERAES 1% —REH
*  Not audited by CCIF CPA Limited * UERESSIHMEEMBERAA
FZ
# Incorporated on 15 June 2007 T EFAATRBAFEMKZ

# Incorporated on 25 June 2007
## Incorporated on 2 January 2007
## Incorporated on 18 January 2007

Note:  Guangzhou Mayer is a joint stock limited liability company established
under the laws of the PRC.

# E/\\\:
; +tERAZTRAGMRL
R-TZ2LF-AZBFMKL

AALIDi St ke S S AN E K53 72 AV

MiFE : BN AREFEDAGIEMKLZZ
B BERAF -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—ZEZ+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

24. Deferred Taxation 24, EFERIE
The followings are the major deferred tax assets recognised by ATRAEBRFAEHERZEEER
the Group and movements thereon during the year: ERBEEREREE :
2007 2006
—EELHF ZTTRF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

FRARS TTARY

At 1 January ®n—A—H 27 27
Transfer to income statement F s AW TR

for the year (note 11) (FFaE11) (27) -

At 31 December At+-—A=+—8H = 27

25. Inventories 25. 78

2007 2006

—EELF TETXRFE

RMB’000 RMB’'000

FRARS FTITARE

At cost: AR
Raw materials R 124,405 142,163
Finished goods SIPK i 44,809 75,452
169,214 217,615
26. Trade Receivables 26. & 5 B WIR X
The Group has a policy of allowing an average credit period REEBBTFEFEFZEEHEGN
of 30-180 days to its trade customers and may be extended T30E180H ' HERBFERF 2R
to selected customers depending on their trade volumes and SFERAREEER 2 LHEMER -

settlement with the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—TTLF+_A=+—HIFE &
b
26. Trade Receivables (Continued) 26. EZ EWIR X ()
(i)  Ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows: (i) BIHRERBIRRZRESITNAT

2007 2006

—EELF ZEEXRF

RMB’000 RMB’000

FrRARM FrARE

1 - 30 days 1230H 105,406 125,713

31 -60 days 31260H 94,652 83,493

61— 90 days 61%290H 58,525 65,695

91 - 180 days 91%180H 113,758 85,905

Over 180 days 180H M + 2,117 19,844

374,458 380,650

Provision for impairment of receivables & Ui 5k T8 il {8 7 185 (920) (10,495)

373,538 370,155

(i) The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated (ih BHEWRAZREENATIE

in the following currencies: H=HE -

2007 2006

—ETLHF TETXRF

RMB’000 RMB’000

FTrRARY FrARE

Hong Kong dollars BT 31,994 30,926

Renminbi ARE 59,813 26,657

United States dollars ETT 275,893 271,617

New Taiwan dollars Fats 5,838 40,955

373,538 370,155

(iii)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate to

their fair values.

(i EFEUEF ZIRMEHRELQF

(IERISE=
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—ZEZ+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

26. Trade Receivables (Continued) 26. EZ IR (&)
(iv) Impairment of trade receivables (v) B SRR ZRIE
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are recorded EHESEWRERERRERZ
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied WMEEBBEDRABERCE &
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the AEBEHRATKOFEZ e FE
impairment loss is written off against trade debtors directly. B HEERESRIEE S

BB o B

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during FRZREZRBEEZE (B1FE
the years, including both specific and collective loss BN L EEEIDMmE) N

components, is as follows:

2007 2006
—EELE  CZTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

FRARY TTAR®

At 1 January w—A—H 10,495 11,426
Impairment loss recognised ERREEE 1,558 -
Uncollectible amounts written off 54 f £ W B & BE (11,133) (931)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 920 10,495
At 31 December 2007, the Group's trade debtors of R-ZZEZ+F+-_A=+—H £&&%
RMB920,000 (2006: RMB10,495,000) were individually 2 8B 5 fEI F18920,0007T A R
determined to be impaired. The Group does not hold any (ZZEZXF 10,495,000 A R #)
collateral over these balances. THEREE AT ARE - NEE I &

xS ERTFATMERR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

26. Trade Receivables (Continued)

Trade debtors that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

26. B 5 EUWHR =X (&)

(v)

3 8RB 2 B 5 & W TR

WEWREERKERREZE
SRWGRIE Z R DT -

The Group
KEH

2007 2006
—EELHF ZETEREF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
FRARY FLTAREE
Neither past due nor impaired 37 48 180 B SR B 353,781 353,447
Less than 1 month past due mEA LR —{E A 8,273 14,866
1 to 3 months past due BEAZE3ME A 11,484 1,842
373,538 370,155

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

3 48 380 H 3K (E 2 FE Wk IR T5 R
REZZEF REXEIHNZ
HoR AL 8% o

80 HA 18 3f R (B 2 FE W kIR T e
RETRASEBRBELERIFZ
BURF - REBEBELR B2
EBHR1E B A I FERIELRE
I 58 4% 5% F A& #R A 2 B
Bl - AL B EB 1 FREBTA
ESEEEH-T
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, 27 Prepayments, Deposits and Other 27. BN RE TR EMER

Receivables =g

2007 2006

—ETtHF ZEERF

RMB’000 RMB'000

FRARY FTrTARKE

Prepayments TETRIE 611 5,938

Rental deposits HET 2 617 471

VAT refundable AR EIEER 5,168 8,600

Advance to suppliers BRTHEER 5,381 1,458

Other loan Hib & X - 1,700

Others Hb 4,906 5,254

16,683 23,421

28. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit

28. BAFEIAEBERERZEH

or Loss EE
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
FRARYE FTAR®
Listed securities: EmES
— Equity securities — R
- Hong Kong —&8 11,677 -
— United States of —%
America 2,142 -
— Investment fund —REES
— United States of —%
America 1,814 -
Market value of listed EmESFZTE
securities 15,633 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

Amount due from a Related Company

The amount due from a related company amounted to
RMB6,473,000, in which Mr. Huang Chun-fa has beneficial
interest, is unsecured, interest-free and repayable within the
next twelve months from the balance sheet date. The maximum
amount outstanding during the year amounted to RMB6,473,000
(2006: RMB2,736,000).

No provision for the amount due has been made in the financial
statements. The directors are of the opinion that the carrying
value of the amount due approximate to the fair value at the
balance sheet date.

Pledged Bank Deposits/Bank Deposits

Pledged bank deposits are used to secure the Group’s banking
facilities. The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rates
ranging from 1.15% to 3.80% (2006: 1% to 3.8%) for the year
ended 31 December 2007. The bank deposits carried interest at
market rates which ranged from 2% to 2.25% with maturities of
more than three months.

29.

30.

JELBZBE@A a’A

W —EEAR (BEEHLERER
A B &) FIE A6, 473 0007t AR
W EER 28 WEREEAR
R Z AR A =@ A W/ataoﬁéim
RBEFRIE S FER® /6,473,0007C A
RE& (ZZ2ZF/XF 12,736,000t A &
) o

B 75 ¥R 2R O 2R A 5% 8 KRR TR 1 o 3B
B BEFERRZREYGIA 2 REEHE
HERFEEE

EERARTER RITEX
BRI R IDAERER 2 RTT
BMEREZRIF -REETZLF
TZTA=T—BLEE  KEEFER
RITFEFIREEFFZE1.15%E3.80%
(ZZTXRF 1%E38% )8 =
&8 B A B BR 2 SR 1715 SR T 45 7 &
2%ZE225%F B °
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T
¢ Forthe year ended 31 December 2007 BE—ZZLF+_A=1+—HIFE
T
&'y _
> 31. Cash and Cash Equivalents 1. RERREEEEE
// Cash and cash equivalents include the following components: B4 MBESEEBEERENTEE
I
Group Company
rEE ¥ N/NES|
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EBELFE TTRF ZBELF ITIZRF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

FTRAR® TrRAR® FTrAR® TIARE

Cash atbank and in hand  R{TRFHERE 66,243 45,489 9,768 15,612
Short-term bank deposits 2 BRSRT17 3K 1,218 200 1,218 200
67,461 45,689 10,986 15,812
(i) The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits is () RERTERZEBEINERNA
approximately 3.8% (2006: 3.86%) per annum; these bank 3.8% (ZEERF :3.86%) ' It
deposits have an average maturity of less than 1 month. FRTFRZIHEATE—@EA -
(i) The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are (ih RekReSEBEB ZIRBEEN
denominated in the following currencies: THEEEE :
Group Company
rEE FN/NES|
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EBELFE ZTTRF ZBELFE ZITZRF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

FTRAR® TrRARE FTrAR® TrIARE

Renminbi AR 34,990 18,894 - -
United States dollars EDH 16,178 8,760 = -
New Taiwan dollars ek 521 2,224 = -
Hong Kong dollars BT 15,772 15,811 10,986 15,812
67,461 45,689 10,986 15,812
(i) The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents (i) RERRESFHERL LIRABER
approximate their fair values. HATEEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BEZE—TZLF+-_A=+—HILFE &
L
32. Trade Payables 32. E B IR P
An ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows: BIRMNIRRZIRE DT
2007 2006 |
—gBLE —TTAR
RMB’000 RMB’000

FRARY TETARE

1 —30 days 1£230H 61,771 53,387
31 - 60 days 31260H 19,444 42,611
61— 90 days 61£290H 18,145 17,071
91 - 180 days 91£180H 45,106 26,366
Over 180 days 180H KA £ 160 53
144,626 139,488

The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in the B o RNIRRZIREEL T3 S8t

following currencies: 17 :

2007 2006
S —ETRE
RMB’000 RMB’000

FRARY TTARE

United States dollars ETT 110,944 -
Hong Kong dollars BT 8 -
Renminbi AR 33,674 6,133
New Taiwan dollars ek = 133,355

144,626 139,488
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their fair E 5 REMER ZIRAESEE A FEME
values. o
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E B RS KA

33. Other Payables and Accruals

34.

¢ Forthe year ended 31 December 2007 BE—ZZLF+_A=1+—HIFE

3B. At BN RERETER

2007 2006

—ETtHF —ETRF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

FRARYE FLTARE

Advance from customers BPE# 6,406 14,590
Salaries e 2,501 6,105
Accrued expenses BRI 2,901 6,281
Rental deposits HEZ® 252 -
Other payable H M E T FOE 162,517 -
Other creditors H Ath FE TR 5K 7,275 8,346
181,852 35,322

The carrying amounts of other payables and accruals approximate

their fair values. Included in other payables and accruals

amounting to RMB162,517,000, it is the partial payment made

to the vendor by issuing post-dated bills with due date on 5

February 2008 in regarding to the acquisition of a property

situated in Taiwan.

Borrowings

At 31 December 2007, the maturity of borrowings is as follows:

Hith fERTSRIE R ERT B A 2 iR EE R
HATEEE o Hib BT FHIE R IERT
BRI AH162,517,000C AR
ZHE - WAKE-—BREYEMS
BER-_TETZNF_ARBHHZE
MEBERE S 2O RIE -

34. 68
RZBZLF+-_A=+—8 BE
AR T FIRHAER -

Group Company
rEH ¥ NN

2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELFE ZTETRE ZBEBELE —TERE
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
TRARYE TFTITARE TFTrRAR®E TrTARE
Within 1 year or on demand ~ —F AkIZE K 311,402 345,771 - 41,115
After 1 year but within 2 years —F&ZEMENR - 14,916 - -
After 2 years but within 5 years R4 = AFERA - 9,566 = -
After 5 years HFE - 4,350 = -
311,402 374,603 - 41,115
Current portion ENE (311,402) (345,771) - (41,115)
Non-current portion EmEE o - 28,832 - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

34. Borrowings (Continued) 34. B E (&)
At 31 December 2007, the borrowings were secured by the N-_TEE+F+_A=+—H0 £E&
followings: B T5EEEDET -
Group Company
r5E VYN
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EELFE  ZTTRE  ZBTtFE ZITIRF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

FRAR® TEAR® TrRAR® TIARE

Bank loans RITEN
- Corporate guarantees by —BEERARHAEAR
Group companies R 60,736 73,006 = 41,115
— Secured by fixed deposits — AT BT RERRE 42,412 - = -
— Secured by plant and — LATRE{E 40,701,0007C
machinery with carrying ARE(ZETREF -
value of RMB40,701,000 102,513,000t AR #)
(2006: RMB102,513,000) ZHBRRBERR 11,783 42,394 - -
- Secured by land use right — LAIRTE (E8,416,0007T
with carrying value of ARE(ZETREF -
RMBS,416,000 23,176,000 AR #)
(2006: RMB23,176,000), 2T R -
buildings with carrying 1R E{B26,279,0007T
value of RMB26,279,000 ARE(ZZTRF:
(2006: RMB36,640,000) 36,640,000 AR #)
and bank deposits of Z1EF }46,537,0007T
RMB46,537,000 ARE(ZETRF -
(2006: RMB 8,652,000) 8,652,0007C A R #)
ZRITIESRIEE A 26,737 168,585 - -
141,668 283,985 - 41,115
— Unsecured —EIR A 169,734 87,299 = -
Other loans HiEH
-~ Unsecured — - 3,319 - -
311,402 374,603 - 41,115
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# Forthe year ended 31 December 2007 #ZE—ZETLF+-A=+—HIFE

34. Borrowings (Continued)

The borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

34. 68

(&)

EENLTIEEHE -

Group Company
KEH ¥ NN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EBELHE —EERF —EBELHF —EETNREF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FrARYE FTITARE TRARY®E FTITARE
Hong Kong dollars BT 24,117 41,115 - 41,115
United States dollars ETT 213,730 =
Renminbi ARE 73,555 247,000 = -
New Taiwan dollars ek = 86,488 = -
311,402 374,603 - 41,115
The effective annual interest rates of the borrowings at the REEHEBZERENEDT -

balance sheet date were as follows:

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
HK$ RMB NT$ HK$ RMB NT$
B ARE HEW BT AR =k
Bank borrowings 2.5-55% 2.8-5.5% 24-6% 25-55% 2.8-55% 2.4-6%

124 Mayer Holdings Limited

The carrying amounts of all borrowings approximate their fair
values.

All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s balance sheet
ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
finance institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become payable on demand.
The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in note 3(c). As at 31 December 2007 none of the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached.
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4
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #BE—TET+F+_A=+—RAILFE §
3
35. Issued Capital 35. 2 B#TRAX p
Number of Number of  Nominal value

authorised shares

shares issued

of shares issued

EERGEHE CSRITRHOBE CBCRTRAOAEE

RMB’000

FITARY

At 1 January 2006 RZEEZRF—HA—H 1,000,000,000 400,000,000 42,480

Issue of shares BT - 80,000,000 8,000
At 31 December 2006 RIZTEZERF

+=-—RA=+—H 1,000,000,000 480,000,000 50,480

Issue of shares BITRMD - 96,000,000 8,980

At 31 December 2007 RIZETF
+=-—A=+—H 1,000,000,000 576,000,000 59,460

RZZEZLEFENA+=8 " BEERR
AR RREETLZRABRZ
96,000,0008% & IR T {0.10/4 7T 2 A&
RN EIPADIREF0.608 7T 2 BIZEETT -
FBEFRNES TERER 2EAR
DAL FEEE -

On 13 August 2007, pursuant to the subscription agreements
entered into between the Company and 7 investors 96,000,000
shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company were issued at a price of
HK$0.60 per share. All the new shares issued rank pari passu in
all respects the then existing shares.
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36. Share Option Scheme 36. B EHE

The Share Option Scheme was adopted on 24 May 2004 for
the primary purpose of providing incentives and to recognise
the contribution of the eligible participants to the growth of
the Group and will expire on 24 May 2014. Under the Share
Option Scheme, the Board may grant options to eligible full
time employees, including any executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive directors, and consultants or advisers
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Up to 31 December 2007, no options have been granted since
the adoption of the Share Option Scheme. The total number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other option schemes is
not permitted to exceed 30% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any individual in any year
is not permitted to exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company, without prior approval from the Company'’s
shareholders.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant to
the 10 years of the date of grant. No minimum period for which
an option must be held is required. The exercise price, which is
determined by the Board is the highest of: (i) the closing price
per share on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price per
share for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BEZE—TZLF+-_A=+—HILFE &
%

37. Reserves 37. R P
Company AAF]
Proposed
Special Share  Translation Retained final
reserve premium reserve profits dividend Total
Rk

BHGEE RHRE ARREE  RERN KBRS @zt
RVMB'0OO  RVMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
TRARE TrARE FTRARE TrIARE FTRARE TIARE

At31December 2005 ~ RZTTHF
and 1 January 2006 +=-A=+-8
RZZTRE
—A—H 125,211 4,076 (870) (3,550) 4,000 128,867
Exchange differences BN ERE - - (10,746) - - (10,746)
Issue of shares BIRH - 33,710 - - - 33,710
Share issue expenses Bh#ETRY - (200) - - - (200)
Loss for the year ERER - - - (9,032) - (9,032)
Dividend paid 2IERE - - - - (4,000) (4,000)
Proposed final dividend %R R HERR S - - - (9,600) 9,600 -
At31December 2006  RZTTRE
and 1 January 2007 +ZA=+—-H
kZBE+F
—A—H 125,211 37,586 (11,616) (22,182) 9,600 138,599
Exchange differences EREE - - (11,392) - - (11,392)
New issue on public listing ~ AF_E77,2 51847 - 44,909 - - - 44,909
Share issue expenses RiDBITEX - (150) - - - (150)
Loss for the year FREE - - - (9,845) - (9,845)
Dividend paid relating BRZEERE
t0 2006 B®E - - - - (9,600) (9,600)
Proposed final dividend %R AR HERR S - - - (11,520) 11,520 -
At 31 December 2007 R-ZFLHF
+-A=+-H 125,211 82,345 (23,008) (43,547) 11,520 152,521
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¢ Forthe year ended 31 December 2007 BE—ZZLF+_A=1+—HIFE

37. Reserves (Continued)

Company (Continued)

The special reserve represented the difference between the
nominal value of the shares of the Company issued in exchange
for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries and the value of
the underlying assets of the subsidiaries pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation on 12 December 2004.

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. At 31 December 2007, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was RMB152,521,000. After the balance sheet date
the directors proposed a final dividend of 2 cents per ordinary
share (2006: 2 cents per share) amounting to RMB11,520,000
(2006: RMB9,600,000). This dividend has not been recognised as
a liability at the balance sheet date.

Subject to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the
Article of Association of the Company, the share premium
and special reserve are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company.

Movements of the Group's reserves are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 50.
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38. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash inflow from

operating activities: H i - '
2007 2006
—ETLE ZEEREF
RMB’000 RMB'000
FrRARYE FTAREE
Profit before taxation RR B A1 % F
Continuing operations FESE ET 8,383 16,072
Discontinued operations RE I 1,652 (7,207)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries KB R R TS s 8,715 -
Gain on deemed and partial disposal BEREHEE
of interests in subsidiaries LI EPNGIE: YRR - 4,673
Profit before taxation B B8 A & A 18,750 13,538
Adjustments for: FHE
Interest income FIEHA (1,907) (1,172)
Interest expenses B 21,824 20,661
Depreciation e 19,609 26,171
Amortisation of operating lease TR E TR FIE 2
prepayment 222 222
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B A R AT e (8,715) -
Gain on deemed and partial disposal RAERBHEE
of interests in subsidiaries B/ A Rl TS e - (4,673)
Negative goodwill arising from EEMEARERES
acquisition of additional interest ZEEHE
in a subsidiary - 171)
Provision for impairment of g BRI 2 R EREE
trade receivables 1,558 -
Provision for impairment of club BER CRERE
debentures 720 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEYE - WS REE
and equipment 2 Was (240) (1,646)
Fair value gain on financial BATEINABREKLZ
assets at fair value TREEL
through profit or loss NFEW S (989) -
Operating profit before working BEESBBAIKE R
capital changes 50,832 52,930
Increase in inventories FEEM (26,851) (4,748)
Increase in amount due from JE UK B8 38 R B SRIE L AN
a related company (3.737) 3)
Increase in trade receivables, 2 G IEWRSR - TR FRIA -
prepayments, deposits and 7] & K H fth B U SR IE I A0
other receivables (32,550) (77,707)
Increase in trade payables, other B H MR - HAb R
payables and accruals FIERJERTE AIE N 8,363 9,991
Cash outflow from RETB2RHERE
operating activities (3,943) (19,537)
Income tax (paid)/refund (B REIFBH (234) 264
Net cash outflow from RETHZRERH
operating activities R (4,177) (19,273)

£ #2007
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE—ZEZ+F+_-_A=+—HIFE

39. Operating Lease Commitments 39. REMHAORIE
At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding R&EHER - f%@tﬁﬁ&fﬁ%i@i
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- ;Ef?;{gﬁﬁéﬁfaéﬁ?ﬁé;ézﬁgsu"II—E

cancellable operating leases in respect of motor vehicles and

rented premises which fall due as follows:

2007 2006
—BTLE  —TTAF
RMB’'000 RMB’000

FRARY TTAR%

Motor vehicles AE
Within one year —FRX = 541
Rented premises HEME
Within one year —FRX 1,451 830
In the second to fifth years inclusive BEZERF (BIEEEMT) 2,102 990
3,553 1,820
Leases are negotiated for term of one to three years with fixed HAozF8Her—=2=9F mEH
monthly rentals over the term of the leases. Nz BETIBETE -
None of the leases includes contingent rentals. MERNBEIAEE -
40. Future Operating Lease Arrangement 40. RRBEHNZH
At the balance sheet date, the Group had future aggregate REEH  NEERREIBER TS
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating lease in HABR fE 2 TR A TR A 2 R R
respect of aircrafts as follows: EBERBALT :
2007 2006
—ETtHE ZETREF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
FRARYE FTTARE
Within one year —F R 4,452 4,966
In the second to fifth years inclusive FEZERF (BEEEWE) 3,442 1,655
7,894 6,621
Lease is negotiated for term of three years with a fixed monthly MO FHRHBEA=—F mMHEBRAZ
rental over the term of the lease. AHETIBEE -

130 VEVEI M ERETNNICT]  Annual Report 2007



41.

42.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR RS KA

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE-FT+F+-_A=+—HIFE

Commitments 41, &I
2007 2006
—EELF ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FRARY FTAREE
Capital expenditure contracted for BRAWEEDE - eSS &k
but not provided in respect of B PAREI ROk R 2
acquisition of property, plant ZEBRRAX
and equipment 919 1,498

The Company did not have any significant capital commitments
at both balance sheet dates.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2007, the Group pledged the land use
rights with a carrying value of approximately RMB8&,416,000
and building, plant and equipment with aggregate carrying
value of approximately RMB66,980,000 and bank deposits of
approximately RMB46,537,000 to banks to secure banking
facilities to the extent of RMB140,383,000.

At 31 December 2006, the Group pledged the freehold land
and land use rights with carrying value of approximately
RMB23,176,000 and building, plant and equipment with
aggregate carrying value of approximately RMB139,153,000
and bank deposits of approximately RMB8,652,000 to banks
to secure banking facilities to the extent of approximately
RMB117,120,000 granted to the Group.

42.

PRELEER  AQRWELFMEK
B o

EEEKR
R-ZTEET+E+-_A=+—0 K&
B B R RITIE IR (A XY A8,416,000
TAR®EZ T RAE U REK
Tl & 4966,980,0007T A R #E Z #EF -
22 & 5% 45 & #946,537,000T A R
B2RITFER  MMEAREBEEK
140,383,000t A R 2 HRITEE 2K
?Eﬁ °

R-TEEXRE+_A=+—0 K&
2 A #R 17 #7108 4923,176,000
TAREZKAERE L R L E
FA # - LA R #R T 48 B 49139,153,000
TARBZET e REE kY
8,652,0007C A RERITHEN - AER
ANEEBBEFZ49117,120,0007C A R#E >
IRITEE 2 -
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43.

44,

Contingent Liabilities

At 31 December 2007, the Company has given corporate
guarantees in favour certain banks to secure banking facilities
of RMB80,241,000 (2006: RMB47,016,000) granted to
Guangzhou Mayer, a subsidiary. Out of these banking facilities,
RMB60,736,000 was utilised by Guangzhou Mayer as at 31
December 2007 (2006: RMB44,961,000).

Apart from the above, the Company and the Group have no
other material contingent liabilities at both balance sheet dates.

Employee Retirement Benefits

The Company and its subsidiaries participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes governed by the relevant local
government authorities in which they operate.

The Company operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets
of the Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustees. The Company contributes
5% of the relevant payroll to the Scheme, which contribution is
matched by employees. The Company’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the scheme.

The Company’s subsidiary in the PRC is required to make monthly
contributions to the retirement schemes up to the time of
retirement of the eligible employees, at a rate of 12% of the
local standard basic salaries. The local government authorities are
responsible for the pension liabilities to these retired employees.

As of 31 December 2007, the Group had no obligation apart
from the contributions as stated above. There were no forfeited
contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the
retirement benefits schemes.
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RREE
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80,241,0000L AR B (ZE T XN F -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BZE—TZT+F+_A=1+—HILFE &

45. Connected and Related Party Transactions

During the year, the Group had the following connected and
related party transactions which were conducted in the ordinary
course of the Group's business:

(i)  ROC Advance Limited (“ROC"), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group entered into an aircraft lease agreement with
Daily Air Corporation (“Daily Air"), a related company
in which Mr. Huang Chun-fa has beneficial interest,
regarding the leasing of four aircrafts and the provision of
consultancy services by ROC to Daily Air for a term of three
years commencing from 1 May 2006 to 30 April 2008 in
consideration of rental income and consultancy fee income.
At the balance sheet date, RMB6,473,000 is due from this
related company (note 29). Total amounts received during
the year are disclosed in (v) below.

(i)  On 13 April 2007, ROC entered into the Aircraft Sale
Agreement with Sino Regal Assets Limited (“Sino Regal”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Mayer Steel Pipe Corporation,
the ultimate holding company, to acquire two aircrafts from
Sino Regal for a total consideration of approximately US$2
million. At the same date, Sino Regal and Daily Air executed
the Lease Assignment Agreement. Under the Lease
Assignment Agreement, ROC has agreed to continuously
lease the aircrafts to Daily Air for the period commencing
from the date of the Lease Assignment Agreement to 30
April 2008 for an annual rental of US$552,000. The Aircrafts
Sale Agreement and the Lease Assignment Agreement were
completed on 31 May 2007.

AR RS KA

%
& k'
[
Y
X . L5
45 BBERXZRBAEA LIRS
RER REBEHBEKPETZ
BEISHLRBEEATZIZUOT

-1

(i) AEEZ2ENBARIBEBRA
A ([H53E |) BAREE N Rl iR M=
RhERAT ((E2mzE]) (&
BREENETHEEERER)
FIREEERZE N EH@EMN
ERg s HERBIFERMELZM
FRHBRRSE BT RF
AFA—HEZZEZENFNA=F
HIERE=F REARHESKA
FEMBWA - REEBD - B
% FA3E N\ 3R I8 /6,473,0000T A
R (f5E29) - FAUWE 2 85
B T XX (V)RR -

g HxHx%%EEfﬂ l+
BOBRARZZEANB R A
Sino Regal Assets Limited ([Sino
Regal]) AT/ RESHE Bk - A
MSino RegalfE B FIZE I - B
1B %9 /32,000,000% 7T © [A HSino
Regal R B L fnZE 2 T HEEE
- REEEEERS B
REEELARETELZME
HHAEEEHBEARAEE-ZT
ZNFHUA=THIL - FH&AR
552,000 7T ° 7 # §H & 15 5%t
HEEZERACN ST LFH
A=+—HZEmK -
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45. Connected and Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

On 13 April 2007, Guangzhou Mayer Corp., Ltd (“Guangzhou
Mayer”), a 81.4% indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the Raw Material Purchase Agreement with
Mayer Steel Pipe Corporation, the ultimate holding company,
for the acquisition of raw materials from Mayer Steel Pipe
Corporation for the period commencing from 1 April 2007
to 31 March 2010. The directors of the Company expect that
the maximum amount of raw material purchase for the three
years ending 31 March 2010 will be in the amounts of US$3.9
million, US$4.3 million and US$4.7 million, respectively.

During the year, Guangzhou Mayer has purchased raw
materials from Mayer Steel Pipe Corporation approximately
US$1.4 million at terms similar to those charged by
independent third party suppliers.

On 13 April 2007, Sunbeam Group Limited (“Sunbeam”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the Share Disposal Agreement with Mayer Steel Pipe
Corporation, to dispose all of its 28.51% equity interest
in Fullchamp for a consideration of NT$149,500,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB34.6 million) in cash. The
disposal of Fullchamp is completed on 3 July 2007.
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45. Connected and Related Party Transactions 45. BERZRBEALTRS

(Continued) (#)

(v) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed ) BRZAEFFS Rk E M E D Bt
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the IR MESRIN REBREAN
following material transactions with related parties during BREATETUTERRS :
the year:

Name Nature of Relationship Transaction 2007 2006
®E B% REME —EELHF —TITRF
RMB'000 RMB'000

FTRAR® TTARE

Lo Haw and his spouse Director of the company Rental paid 120 120
BERERE RARES EfHEE
Daily Air Corporation Under common director Rental income 7,195 4,966
BEMEROERLDR  XHEEEEH He A
Consultancy fee income 469 144
BERERA
Note:  The rental, which was paid for premises owned by Mr. Lo Haw Mzt : MBELANEREHERSZ
and his spouse was determined with reference to the prevailing —EYEINZHASTHIZ2ER
market rental. MRS ERT -
46. Post Balance Sheet Events 46. FEBARSEIE
Subsequent to 31 December 2007 and up to the date of approval RIEBELF+_A=1+—"B#KE
of these financial statements, the Group has no material post EAFBHERESN, EZBE  KEE
balance sheets events. WEEREERREIE -
47. Capital Management 47. EXER
The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to AEFEETEBEEA EEBELZRER
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in EEFERKLLE N AR EIRMHE
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other MW BEREMAEEEE A RREE
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to (L H) B R ZERE DU ERE € AN o

reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group BIRES HREARE  AEEAH
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return BRRERERE S [IREIR
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce BEN  BTHRBROEEBERE °
debt.
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4
> 47. Capital Management (Continued) 47.
Consistent with industry practices, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio. The gearing
ratio is defined as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is

calculated as total bank borrowings less cash and bank deposits.
Total capital is calculated as shareholders’ funds (i.e. total equity
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company) plus net
debt.

During 2007, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2006, was to maintain the gearing ratio below 80%.

EXEE (#)
ARAFIBEA R AL RERE AR
R AENED - AR EL
RRFEBRUBER FEKRE
BTBERERERBITFRZE -
BAFRRFAS (AAR A ESH
BN (SRR I LR E R 2 B

AEBR _ZETLFHEEREBEL R
RIFAEB0%LA T » KRB —TT X

The Group's gearing ratio at 31 December 2007 and 2006 was as REBR_EE+ER_ZTTENE
follows: +ZA=t—BZEEARGLERNT
2007 2006
—EEtHF ZEERF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 7 FTRARY FrxARE
Total borrowings BIEE 34 311,402 374,603
Less: Cash and bank deposits o IR MIRTTER 30, 31 (113,998) (76,141)
Net debt FE 197,404 298,462
Shareholders’ funds fERE & 316,123 263,946
Total capital HBER 513,527 562,408
Gearing ratio EXRBELE 38% 53%

As at 31 December 2007 and 2006, the Group had complied
with all of the required financial covenants as stated in the
Group’s banking facilities granted by certain banks.

48. Comparative Figures 48.

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with
changes in disclosures in the current year and to show separately
comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed for the first
time in 2007.

49. Ultimate Holding Company 49,

The directors regard Mayer Steel Pipe Corporation, a company
incorporated in the Republic of China, as being the ultimate
holding company.
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